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Prayerful greetings in Christ!

Expressing our faith through deeds of justice and love is particularly
urgent in our society today, where the exercise of faith often seems
to be restricted to the realm of religious activities and private
morality.

Faith must be exercised in service, to care for the needs and to
work for the realization of our vision — total human development!

More power to our working force- the BOT, fo Management Staff,
to all Are Coordinators and all Area Representatives.

Gener C. Luciano
General Manager




CORPORATE INFORMATION

Organization

Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. was incorporated in the
Philippines on February 17, 1987. The registered office address of the
Association is located at 35 Paseo del Congreso, Catmon, Malolos City,
Bulacan. A non-stock, non-profit association, the Association is exempt from
the payment of income tax under Section 30c of the National Internal
Revenue Code. However, the income of whatever kind and character of the
Association from any of its properties, real or personal, or from any of its
activities conducted for profit, regardless of the disposition made of such
income, shall be subjected to tax. Moreover, interest income derived from
deposit with banks is subject to final tax.

Objectives

a) primarily to foster brotherhood thru mutual help and benefit among its
members, to encourage the habit of thrift and savings among its members;

b) to provide material aid and comforts to members and their families in
cases of loses, disability, necessities, unemployment, retirement, or old age as
maybe authorized by statutes of regulations prescribed by competent
authority;

c) and in general to do such acts and things and to undertake such
activities not otherwise prohibited by law which are calculated to help
members and necessary for the accomplishment of the purpose of which the
association has been organized.

Mission and Vision

During the annual review by the Education Committee headed by Trustee
Fr. Ramon Garcia, in accordance with the requirement of the ASEAN
Corporate Governance Scorecard (ACGS), the following mission and vision
statements were approved by the Praxis Fides MBAI Board of Trustees:

Praxis Fides MBAI mission and vision statement is “Magtipon Tayo't !
Mag-impok, Makatugon at Maglingkod” and “Pinagsamang Yamang Tao,
Buhay na Ganap ang Tungo”.

In fulfillment of such mission and vision, Praxis Fides MBAI commits itself to:

* Encourage members to save money and at the same time to have basic
life insurance

* To be spiritually and financially stable to achieve the “Buhay na Ganap
ang Tungo” or Total Human Development.
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Associations Objectives

Praxis Fides aimed to achieve the following in 2019

1. Review and update the internal control manual of the association.

2. Open new areas in Malolos, Pulong Buhangin and San Miguel in Bulacan.
3. Improved the collection process for loans.

4. Equity loan maximization of at least 50% of total unused equity.

FINANCIAL AND NON-FINANCIAL REPORTS
Membership & Claims

A total of 15,195 new members were added in 2019, average per month is
1,266 which collected a total of P795,750.00 in membership fees. The total
active members for the year 2019 is 106,962.

For 2019, Death Claims versus Insurance Premium collected is still
conservative. The table shows the five year figures of Insurance premium
collected vs. death claims and the total claims for 2019 per cluster

hsurance Claims vs. Total Claims

YEAR INSURANCE PREMIUM TOTAL CLAIMS PERCENTAGE
2019 P28,995,867 P8 485,000 29%
2018 P25,631,691 P8 485,000 33%
2017 P22,804,067 P7A20,000 33%
2016 P20,331,775 P5,105,000 25%
2015 P17,371,368 P6,350,000 37%

Total Number of Claims per Cluster
CLUSTER Total AMOUNT
G2 27 P840 000
G3 52 P1,770 000
G4 23 P6S0,000
G5 - P1505 000
G6 23 P890 000
G7 56 P1540 000
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Loans

Creditors Right

a) To help our members meet providential needs as well as productive requirements
at relatively low interest rate;

b) To inculcate in the minds of its members the habit of thrift and the value of money;

c) To provide loans at low risk through proper documentation procedures;

d) To maximize the company’s earnings through loans and minimize loss by collection
procedures;

e) Loanis a privilege not aright. As such, loans shall be made available o members
of Praxis Fides MBAI.

In year 2018 the Loans Department created the Area Releases Maximizer so called
ARM, aiming fo promote the certificate loans. The ARM encourages our members to
avail the certificate loans and to be categorized as "Participating Members". August 2,
2019 the ARM group held their 3rd regular meeting. The program started with
presentation about Fides aspect, and then a communication activity, how they
communicate with their members, tackles also the new strategies in recruitment it ended
with the status and targets of each ARM performances. The ARM is a great tool to
increase our certificate releases.
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GM'’s Report

Market

Total plans sold in 2019- 15,950, average for the month is 1,329 hew members.
Performing Area Representatives 196 or 35%, non-performing is 190 or 34% and
Sub- ARs is 169 or 30% of active Area Representatives. Matured plans for the year
2019 are 657 and pre-termination plan are 1,417 out of 2,301 active plans. Every
year best performing area representatives and area coordinators are given
award during the annual general meeting.

Finance

Comparative current assets for 2019 and 2018, over the year we had an
increase of 24% or an additional current assets of 152,855,570 while the non-
current assets decreased by 14%. Total assets for 2019 are P1,062,047,691.

Mr. Luciano explained the comparative financial performance. He also

explained that among the sources of income the following presented as
increased / decreased. The following table represents the comparative year of

2019 s. 2018.
Comparative Comparaive
Current Assets 2019 2018 Non-Current Assets 2019 2018
Cash 168,488,088 199,956,072
ShortTerm Investment 158,412,291 81,248,155 Loans 141,838,402 181,840,569
Loans 242,973,384 222,805,766 FAFV 27,500,000 27,500,000
FAAC 7,956,705 3,000,000 Property & Equip. 14,117,616 15,376,247
FAFV 212,096,983 131,196,311
Prepayments 1,818,280 683,837 Investment Prop. 86,847,942 91,057,602
Total Current Assets 791,745,731 638,890,141 Total Non-Current Assets 270,303,960 315,774,418
Com parative
Revenues 2019 2018
Loans 37,302,349 38,572,048 Comparative
ISDB 15,250,110 7,306,446 Net Profit [ 2019 2018
Insurance Fund 28,995,867 25,631,692 Profit before tax 71,237,091.00 57,464,264.00
General Fund 15,170,110 13,602,734 Tax expense . 3,660,102.00 1,996,005.00
Service Charges 6,935,069 7A77,313 |
Income from sale FAFV 3,235,049 2096938 Net Profit 67,576,989.00 55,468,259.00
Membership Fees 797,500 1194300 . — "
Others 8,040,825 6760107
Gross Revenues 116,726,879  102941,578
Comparative
Expenses 2019 2018
FVloss Ave For Sale Securities = 620,032.00 3,973,705.00
Operating Expenses | 36,354,756.00 33,043,605.00
Benefit Expenses 8,515,000.00 8,455,000.00
Total Expenses I 45,489,788.00 45,472,314.00
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People

Trainings and Development for Praxis Fides Workforce —in 2019, the association
conducted frainings such as:

Area Representative ‘s Initial Training (TRAIN- 1);

Staff Training;

AC Recollection; and

The Data Privacy Act Law.
Trustees’ regular orientation regarding “Good Corporate Governance

Practices” were all attended in 2019.

O e 0 PO =

2019 Development Trainings, Seminars & Orientation Programs

Implementing Rules and Regulations (IRR)
Seminar to Workforce
January - June 2019
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Successive meetings of IRR Seminar to workforce were done in the areas of
Praxis Fides (Pandi, Bustos, Malolos, Baliuag, SMA) including PFO.

Leadership Trainings to Staff and Agents
May 2019

A 100% attendance of PF employees attended the
Leadership Training for PF Employees.
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GM Gener Luciano & MIS Officer Carlo Sayo
aftended this AMLC Seminar.

AMLC Seminar in BSP attended in October 2019

Strategic Planning Review executed in PFMBAI
Office done in November 2019
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Data Privacy Act Seminar given by Dr. Rolando Lansigan of NPC
attended by PF Workface, BOT & Corp. Legal




3 Days Advent Recollection in Norzagaray, Bulacan attended by
BOT Fr. joseph Cruz with GM & AC's

... with sharing on life experiences, ... sharing of success in the midst of trials and of
learning to thanks the Merciful Lord God always.
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STRAT - PLAN: Review of PF Vision/Mission headed by PF Founder
Rev. Fr. Leon Coronel held in Sitio Antonio Resort in Pandi, Bulacan

Review of the Vision & Mission of PFMBAI
November 2019

The PFMBAI Logo:

- 1987, the founding year;

- Tongue of Fire- represents the
guidance of the Holy Spirit; !
- Sign of the Cross- defines our '
chosen way of life, a commitment
to serve not to be served.
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BOARD OF TRUSTEE AND CONTINUING EDUCATION

Praxis Fides MBAI has a seven-person Board of Trustees composed all non- executive and
two independent tfrustees. The members of the board who ends their term are elected
annually during the Annual General Assembly by all members.

During the organizational meeting of the Board, the members of the Board elect among
themselves the PFMBAI’'s Chairman of the Board, Vice President Treasurer, Board Secretary
and Auditor.

Below are the members of the Board of Trustees of Praxis Fides MBAI and their respective
terms of office and the trainings they each attended in 2019:

MR. RAMON BAGAY
Age: 59
Qualification: BS Commerce Major in Management
Date Elected: February 21, 2015
Directorship: Chairman of the Board
Relative Experience: Banker

Trainings and Seminars Atfended:
¢ Praxis Fides MBAI Orientation Training for BOT — March 2019
* Reward and System Workshop — May 2019
* Implementing Rules and Regulations Seminar (PFMBAI) — June 2019
* Leadership Trainings (PFMBAI) — July 2019
e Data Privacy Act Seminar (PFMBAI) — August 2019

FR. RAMON GARCIA
Age: 44
Qualification: Master of Arts in Pastoral Ministry
Date Elected: March 18, 2017
Directorship: Chairman — Education Committee
Relative Experience: Educator

Trainings and Seminars Attended:
* Praxis Fides MBAI Orientation Training for BOT — Mcrch
¢ Reward and System Workshop — May 2019 ‘
* Implementing Rules and Regulations Seminar (PFMB
* Leadership Trainings (PFMBAI) — July 2019
e Data Privacy Act Seminar (PFMBAI) — August 2019
e Advent Recollection with ACS — November 2019
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Fr. Joseph DJ. Cruz
Age: 40
Qualification: AB Philosophy
Date Elected: March 18, 2017
Directorship: Chairman Nomination Committee
Relative Experience: Educator

Trainings and Seminars Attended:
* Praxis Fides MBAI Orientation Training for BOT — March 2019
* Reward and System Workshop — May 2019
* Implementing Rules and Regulations Seminar (PFMBAI) — June 2019
* Leadership Trainings (PFMBAI) — July 2019
* Data Privacy Act Seminar (PFMBAI) — August 2019
* Advent Recollection with ACS — November 2019

Ms. Pelagia D. Bautista
Age: 40
Qualification: BS Accounting -1987, MBA General Mgt. 1995
Date Elected: March 21,2019
Directorship: Chairman Compensation Committee
Relative Experience: Training Facilitator, Administrative & Mgt.

Trainings and Seminars Attended:
* Praxis Fides MBAI Orientation Training for BOT — March 2019
* Reward and System Workshop — May 2019
» Corporate Governance Seminar (Philsec) — May 2019
* Implementing Rules and Regulations Seminar (PFMBAI) — June 2019
* Leadership Trainings (PFMBAI) — July 2019
* Data Privacy Act Seminar (PFMBAI) — August 2019

Ms. Eufrocina Cabuhat

Age: 51

Qualification: BS Accountancy - 1995
Date Elected: March 21,2019
Directorship: Chairman Audit Committe

* Praxis Fides MBAI O
* Reward and Syste
* Corporate Govern
* Implementing Rules
* Leadership Trainings
* Data Privacy Act Semin
* Advent Recollection with A

~ PRAXIS FIDES ANNUAL REPORT .




Mr. Santiago Antonio
Age: 45
Qudlification: Institute of Local Government Administration 2013
Date Elected: March 17,2018
Directorship: Chairman Investment Committee
Relative Experience: Businessman

Trainings and Seminars Attended:
* Praxis Fides MBAI Orientation Training for BOT — March 2019
* Reward and System Workshop — May 2019
* Implementing Rules and Regulations Seminar (PFMBAI) — June 2019
* Leadership Trainings (PFMBAI) — July 2019
* Data Privacy Act Seminar (PFMBAI) — August 2019
* Advent Recollection with ACS — November 2019

Atty. Peter Christopher Gonzales
Age: 46
Quadlification: Bachelor of Law 1999
Date Elected: March 17,2018
Directorship: Chairman Risk Management Committee
Relafive Experience: Lawyer

Trainings and Seminars Attended:
* Praxis Fides MBAI Orientation Training for BOT — Mqrch 2019
* Reward and System Workshop — Ma 2019 z
* Implementing Rules and Reg i
* Leadership Trainings (PFM
e Data Privacy Act Semina
* Advent Recollection with




BOARD PERFORMANCE

Board Meetings

In 2019, Praxis Fides MBAI Board of Trustees conducted seven (7) regular meetings and (8)
special meetings. The table below summarizes the total number of board meetings.
Included in the table is their attendance in the Annual Orientation of Board of Trustees and
Annual General Meeting.

BOARD TRUSTEE |Attended the |attended the | Number of Number of |Percentage
POSITION AGM Yearly BOT | Regular/Special | Regular/Special
Orientation |Meetings Held in Meetings
2019-2020 Attended
JICHAIRMAN MR. RAMON V. BAGAY Yes Yes 15 15 100%
VICE CHAIRMAN [FR. RAMON GARCIA Yes Yes 15 14 93%
TREASURER FR. JOSEPH CRUZ Yes Yes 15 13 87%
SECRETARY IMS. PELAGIA BAUTISTA Yes Yes 15 15 100%
AUDITOR MS EUFROCINA CABUHAT Yes Yes 15 15 100%
||IBOT-MEMBER IMR. SANTIAGO ANTONIO Yes Yes 15 12 80%
|[BOT-MEMBER  |ATTY. PETER CHRISTOPER GONZALES|  Yes No 15 15 100%

After the election of the new sets of officers in the board, regular and special meeting for
2020-2021 is set on every last Friday of the month.

Board Committees

Praxis Fides MBAI has seven (7) committees composed of Board of Trustees. Area
Coordinators (ACs) and Area Representatives (ARs) can attend a committee meeting as
resource person only. Outlined below are Board committees’ members and aftendance in
committee meeting in 2019.

Audit Committee

The committee is composed of five (5) committee members: three (3) trustees all are all
Independent Trustee and (2) resource persons. The committee provides internal audit and
external audit functions, monitor accounting policies and procedures as well as risk
management policies and practices. Members of the audit committee are all capable of
reading financial reports and have accounting background. ction of external auditors.

In 2019, the committee held six (6) meetings with these agendas:
1. Review and approval of external auditor;
2. Field audit of Branches and Areas;
3. Presentation of the final audited financial statement ;
4. Revision of internal control manual.

2019 Audit Committee Number of Meetings
Member Designation Meetings Attended | Percentage |
Eufrocina Cabuhat Chairman
JAtty. Peter Christopher Gonzales  |Member
Ramon V.Bagay [Member
Engracia Mauricio Resource Person
Ellaine Carla Pasco Resource Person
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Trustee Cabuhat as head of the Audit Committee affrmed the correctness,
true and fair representation of Annual presentation of Financial Reports. Praxis
Fides MBAI annual audit was conducted by AMC & Associates and
independent and qualified auditor duly accredited of Insurance Commission.
The audit fees for the year 2019 P121,000.00.

Nomination Committee

For the year 2019, the Nomination Committee was headed by Fr. Joseph
Cruz, held three (3) meetings. During the Pre Annual General Meeting that
was attended by the Board of Trustees, Area Coordinator and Management
last February 17, 2020, the following revisions of qualification and
disqualification of board of trustee candidate.

Qualifications and disquadlification for Praxis Fides MBAI candidates for Board of
Trustee.

a. Any active member with good standing provided that at the fime of
election he/she can complete a three (3) year ferm. The maximum
age is 62 years old.

b. Members and non-members of PF organizational committee can file a
certificate of candidacy.

c. Anyone related to any personnel, workforce, area coordinator and
area representative up to third degree of consanguinity or affinity,
legitimate or common-law will be disqualified.

d. Praxis Fides board of trustee have a maximum cumulative term of nine
(9) years, he/she must be elected three (3) times with a three (3) year
term with an interval of a year per term.

2019 Nomination Committee Number of Meetings |-
Member Designation Meetings Attended | Percentage =0
Fr. Joseph Cruz Chairman 3 3 100% e
Santiago Antonio IMermber 3 B e
Ramon Bagay Member 3
[Melody Gaddi Resource Person 3
Susan Geronimo Resource Person 3
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Remuneration Committee
The committee was headed by Trustee Pelagia Bautista. The review and

modification of the compensation package of the Management ,Staff and
Area Representative are still in progress. They held three (3) committee

meetings in 2019.

2019 Remuneration Committee Number of Meetings
Member Deslgnation Meetings Attended | Percentage
Pelagia Bautista Chairman 3 3 100%
Ramon Bagay Member 3 3 100%
Fr_Ramon Garcia [Member 3 3 100%
Ellain Carla Pasco Resource Person 3 3 100%

Board Remuneration

Praxis Fides Trustees does not receive any income, they were given
honorarium for every regular and special meeting to cover gasoline and
transportation expenses the incurred in attending the meetings, additional
minimal amount of honorarium is given depending on the position and
responsibilities they held in the association. The total remuneration of the
board of frustee is part of the total administrative expense of the company.

BOARD TRUSTEE Amount
POSITION
ICHAIRMAN MR. RAMON V. BAGAY 103,000.00
(VI CE CHAIRMAN FR. RAMON GARCIA 88,000.00
[TREASURER FR. JOSEPH CRUZ 84,500.00
ISECRETARY MS. PELAGIA BAUTISTA 101,500.00
IAUDITOR MS EUFROCINA CABUHAT 101,500.00
BOT-MEMBER MR. SANTIAGO ANTONIO 71,000.00
BOT-MEMBER IATTY. PETER CHRISTOPER GONZALES 90,000.00

Risk Management and Related Party Transactions Committee
In 2019, Risk Management Committee headed by Atty. Peter Christopher
Gonzales focuses on variety of financial risks. The committee held three (3)
meetings with the following agenda.
a. Update loan account for Extra Judicial Foreclosure;

. Review of Loan Policy; ¥
c. Review of Medical Questionnaire in Membership Application Form; «

2019 Risk Management Number of Meetings
Committee Member Designation Meetings Attended | Percentage
IAtty Peter Christopher Gonzales  [Chairman
Ramon Bagay Member
Fr.Ramon Garcia Member




Disclosure of transactions of Board of Trustees, Employees and Workforce of
the associations are reported during the meetings. The extent of the related
party transactions involves the beneficiary, amount, nature and term of
transactions. A total of 9,667,602.11 pertain to Privileged Loan/ Car Loan of
Staff. The committee has conducted the review and ensured that the
fransactions are fair and at arm’s length.

The committee also reviews the Anti-Corruption Program of the Association, it
includes bribery, extortion and nepotism. All collateralized loans requirements
must be complete and standards are met.

The Association is exposed to a variety of financial risks in relation to financial
insfruments. The main types of risk are Market Risk, Credit Risks and Liquidity Risks.

Market Risk — interest rate risk of financial instruments which affects the
result of the investing activities of the Associations.

Credit Risk- the risk that fails to discharge an obligation to the Association.
Example of this risk is granting loans to member borrower.

Liquidity Risk- is generally defined as the current and prospective risk to

earnings or capital arising from the Association’s inability to meet its obligation
when they fail due without incurring unacceptable losses or cost.

Performance appraisal of the Board and General Manager

A formal and rigorous evaluation of the Board's own performance and that of
its committees and individual trustees is done annually.

The Chairman of the Board shall hold meetings without the executives’

presence to evaluate the executives’ performance and The Board, led by an
independent frustee, shall meet annually without the chairman’s presence to
appraise the chairman’s performance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE INFORMATION

Independent Trustee

Maijority of Praxis Fides MBAI trustees must be independent, and all trustees
must be non-executive. Independence shall mean that: (i) frustee has not been
an officer or employee of the Praxis Fides MBAI, its subsidiaries, affiliates or
related interests, for at least three (3) years preceding term or incumbency; (ii)
trustee is not related within the fourth degree of consanguinity or affinity,
legitimate or common-law, to any trustee or senior officer of the company or
any of its related companies; and (iii) trustee is free from any business or other
relationships with the institution or any of its related companies which could
possibly give rise to conflict of interest situation.

Praxis Fides MBAI has two independent frustees. Atty. Peter Christopher
Gonzales and Mr. Santiago Antonio both started serving as Board of Trustee in
2018. Their qualifications and insights in the fields of business and law,
respectively, have been vital during board meetings and decision making.

Internal and External Audit

The independent auditor provides opinion on the fairness of presentation of
the financial statements of Praxis Fides MBAI. The selection process for the
external auditor is evaluated at Audit Committee which submits its
recommendation to the Board of Trustees. The Board approved selection is
part of the agenda in the annual general assembly for approval of the
members.

For the year 2019, AMC and Associates highly recommended by the Audit
Committee to be the external auditor was approved by the general
membership. The fees based on the scope of work is amounting fo One
Hundred Twenty One Thousand Pesos (P121, 000.00) exclusive of value added
tax and other expenses like the cost of printing, report reproduction,
transportation and other incidental expenses incurred in the course of carrying
out the services herein provided.

Internal auditor reports directly to the Board of Trustee, Ms. Precy Cabuhat
and her team reviewed the internal control manual of the association in 2019,
also they have undergone area audit of clusters and recommends additional :
policies and procedures to be implemented on 2019.

Corporate Governance Manual
On November 2019, the head of the Education Committee Trustee Fr. Ramon
Garcia, lead the review and revision of the Praxis Fides MBAI Corporate
Governance Manual. There were no changes effected in 2019 because the
revision is still in process.
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Code of Ethics and Conduct

The code of ethics of Officers and Employees of Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit
Association, Inc. is established to promote high standard of ethics among
officers and employees of the Association who shall at all-time accountable
to Board of Trustees and the General Membership of Praxis Fides MBAI. All
officers and employees of the Association shall discharge their duties and
official function with utmost honesty and integrity and uphold members’
interest over and above personal interest. This code shall apply to all Trustees,
Officers and Employees of Praxis Fides MBAI. The process for filing a complaint
shall be made public; however the complainant and the complaint shall be
treated with utmost confidentiality

Financial and Non-Financial Indicators
Praxis Fides MBAI has been compliant to the policies and regulations of the
Insurance Commission. The Risk Based Capital Ratio for 2018 is 177%.
Protection of Member — Credit life of member borrower to include interest in
computing the annual premium.

Commitment to Good Governance

Praxis Fides MBAI take corporate governance to mean “a system whereby
management enhances the value of a corporation by the way objectives
are set and achieved, risk is monitored and managed, and performance is
optimized, by taking infto account corporate social responsibility.” With this
understanding, Praxis Fides MBAI binds itself “to promote fairness,
transparency and accountability” in all its corporate actions and endeavors.

Policy on Dividends

Praxis Fides MBAI being a non-stock non-profit mutual aid association, does
not distribute dividends to its members. However, pursuant to Circular Letter
Number 2015-46 dated 8 September 2015 section 408 paragraph 3 of the
amended Insurance Code of the Philippines, it may distribute the excess of its
free and unassigned surplus to the member benefits’ fund, whether in cash or
in kind, and duly verified by the Insurance Commission. The table below shows
the earnings and equitable dividend for members.

* EQUITIES FOR EARNINGS - 685,529,741.40
* EQUITIES WITH LOAN - 210,050,498.97
* EQUITIES WITHOUT LOAN — 475,479,242.43

P55M P60M
Borrowers — 9.25% 10.5%
Non- Borrowers-  7.5% 8%

* The above data presents a high 10.5% equitable dividend rate for
active members and 8% for non —borrowers for a total amount of
P60,093,641.79
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Related Party Transactions

Praxis Fides MBAI Independent Trustee shall review the materials and
significant Related Party Transactions to determine whether they are in the
best interest of the association and its members.

Anti-Corruption Program

The Association prohibits the Board of Trustees, Employees and Workforce to
give and receive gifts in any kind of form monetary or things in exchange of
favors and decisions that may affect or compromise the Praxis Fides MBAI's
integrity or may have a negative impact to the associations.

Feedback and Grievance, Whistle Blowing Policy

Praxis Fides MBAI shall create a grievance committee to accommodate
feedbacks, complaints and make policies and procedure to handle
complaints. The association encourages all the stakeholders to communicate
freely their concerns and complaints about unethical or illegal practices and
transactions. The committee shall ensure that the rights of the complainant
will not be compromised and the association shall take all proper measures to
ensure the stakeholders who reported the feedback or complaint are
protected. The Board of Trustees shall review and resolve all feedbacks and
complaints. A yearly review or orientation to the employees shall be
conducted for them to be aware of illegal practices and know what should
they do if they encounter such practices.

Training and Development

The Board of Trustees should allocate funds for frainings and development of
employees, trustees and workforce. Trustees are required to attend separate
Corporate Governance Seminar which shall be conducted by duly
accredited private or government institution. The Management Team should
adopt an annual training and development plan for the employees.

Customer’s Welfare

Praxis Fides MBAI is committed to give its members an affordable life
insurance and retirement savings. The association also provides equity and
business loans with low interest rates for members. Yearly seminar of customer
service, values and formation are being given to employees and workforce to
ensure that quality service was given to the customer.
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Employees’ Health, Safety and Welfare Policy
Praxis Fides MBAI has policies and program which includes working conditions, health
and safety, skills training and career opportunity and balance work-life.

Policy on Environment
The association declares that it's business do not negatively affect the environment
and commit to promote environmental sustainability through various programs and
activities within the office and the community.

4.9.1 Praxis Fides joins the local government on its annual tree planting activity

within the community
4.9.2 Implements the 5s program in the workplace.
4.9.3 Recycle materials that can be recycled for office use.

Hydroponics Training attended by Head AC's, E T s 5
Audit & GM in Hagonoy, Bulacan (June 2019) This actual visitation and 1ro|n|ng gained knowledge of the
advantages of SNAP Hydroponics

SerqutrSrZegr)\/d: ﬁ:g‘;ﬁ:} gﬁﬁ?&?ﬂﬁgﬁsa\o/ﬁObgoclir;ce The solar panels as source of conservative supply of
(timber), Harvest of Dalandan and Road upgrade. sleciricity diingrdaytime and Night time.
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Diversity Policy

The association is committed to encouraging equality and diversity among
workforce, and eliminating unlawful discrimination. Provide equadlity, fairness
and respect for all employee, whether temporary, part-time or full-time.

Management Team

Praxis Fides MBAI is management and staff headed by the General Manager
Mr. Gener C. Luciano, with the following key officers Comptroller Internal
Ellaince Carla Pasco, Comptroller External Melody Gaddi, HR Ma. Paz Roque,
Credit Officer Maria Mae Joaquin, MIS John Carlo Sayo, Collections OIC Mark
Noel Gasis, and MC Head Maria Theresa Manalastas.




Corporate Social Responsibility

“When we find our self in the position o help someone, let us be happy and glad be-
cause GOD is answering that person's prayer through us. We have to remember, our
purpose on earth is not to get lost in the dark, but to be the light to others so that
they may find their way to GOD through us."

Praxis Fides MBAI conduct product knowledge in the barangay Binuangan in the
coastal area of Obando Bulacan to in calculate to the peoptle of the island the
habit of thrift and value of money and to help the members meet providential needs
aft relatively low interest. As part of the corporate social responsibility of the associa-
tions, Praxis Fides donated sound systems and tables in the Parish of Nuestra Senora
de Salambao Mission Parish.

"GIVING is the greatest gift we can offer to others. Whether it's monetary,
material, words of encouragement, a caring embrace, a pat on the back, or a
simple smile of appreciation - the gift is ours to share. Another day of living is
another day of giving”
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Guidelines and Instructions | Help

Reference No : 122000036379314
Date Filed: June 15, 2020 09:10 AM
Batch Number : 0

| [lf emimarid = ]

For BIR BCS/
ltem 1702-MX06/13P
- Annual Income Tax Return il g
Republika ng Pilipinas - 1702-MX
ngF For Ct and Other N with MIXED Income Subjen 1o Multiple
Kawanihan ng Rentas Inlemas Income Tax Rales or with Income Subject to SPECIAL/PREFERENTIAL June 2013
Enter all required information in CAPITAL LETTERS mmWnLMd-Mbﬂxuwﬂhm‘x‘ﬂm Page 1
muuﬂummmamwmwwm
1 For ) 3 Amended Return? ;m?rrr\‘:;n Period 5 Alphanumeric Tax Code (ATC)
Calendar  Fiscal 1C055 | Minimum C: Income Tax (MCIT) |
2 Year Ended (MM/20YY) Yes  No Yes  No v [ I
120
Part | - Background Information
6 Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) | [oo02 1-[838 |-]408 |-[o00 | | 7RDO Code  |[25A
8 Date of Incorporation/Organization (MM/DD/YYYY)
9 Registered Name (Enter only 1 letter per box using CAPITAL LETTERS)
PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIAT|0N INC |
10 Reg: 2 Add e d address)
35 PASEO DEL CONGRESO CATMON BULACAN 3000 |
11 Contact Number [ 12 Email Address
044 7913558 | praxisfides@gmail.com
13 Main Line of Business g:d :s'C
ACTIVITIES OF OTHER MEMBERSHIP ORGANIZATIONS, N.E.C 9189
15 Method of Deduction Itemized Deduction [Section 34 (A-J), NIRC]
Part Il - Total Tax Payable (Do NOT enter Centavos)
16 Total Income Tax Due (Overpayment) (From Part V item 37D) 611,896
17 Less: Total Tax Credits/Payments (From Part V Item 38D) 481,391
18 Net Tax Payable (Overpayment) (Iftem 16 Less ltem 17) 130,505'
19 Add: Total Penalties (From Part V Iitem 43) 0
20 Total A t Payable (Overpay ) (Sum of items 18 & 19) or (From 130 505'
Part V Item 44) e
21 If Overpayment, mark "X" one box only (Once the choice is made, the same is irrevocable)
To be refunded To be issued a Tax Credit Certificate (TCC) To be carried over as a tax credit for next year/quarter
We declare under the penalties of perjury, that this annual relurn has been made in good faith, verified by
[National Intemal Revenue Code, lslmmded and the. mﬂmwmnmhw (If Authorized R
6€ner C Lucianmo T « D5 Gug
Signature over printed name of President/Principal Officer/Authorized Representative Signalure over 'reasurer/Assistant Treasurer
Title of Signatory umber of pages filed |9
22
Community Tax Certificate (CTC) 23 Date of Issue
Number (MM/DD/YYYY)
SEC Registration Number
24 Place of Issue MANDALUYONG CITY 25 Amount, if CTC 0

Part Ill - Details of Payment

Details of Payment il Number Date (MM/DD/YYYY) Amount
26 Cash/Bank Debit Memo
27 Check
28 Tax Debit Memo
29 Others (Specify Below)

Machine Validation/Revenue Official Receipt Details (if not filed with an Authorized Agent Bank)

Stamp of}

NQ. 25A - PI.ARIDE 8

oF

i 3 o“ |

MARIANNE R. D
LLECTION SECTION
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BIR Form No.

Annual | Tax Ret
e e orarn ) aroz-x | | R R I 1

1702-MX06/13P2
TIN [Registered Name
002 - 838 - 408 - 000 l PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC
Part IV - Basis of Tax Relief
30 Basis of Tax Relief under Special Law or International Tax Treaty if there are more than one activities/programs under EXEMPT and
if there is only one activity/program under EXEMPT and SPECIAL SPECIAL Tax Regimes, use as many Mandatory Attachments per
Tax Regimes, fill up spaces below. Activity (Part Vill) as necessary and mark "X" the box at the left.
% C. Special Tax Relief
A/Exempt B: Special Rate (Under Regular/Normal Rate)
31 Investment Promotion Agency (IPA)/ BIR
{implementing Government Agency
132 Legal Basis SEC 30 NIRC
33 Registered Activity/Program (Reg. No.) NA
34 Special Tax Rate | 0l.|0
35 From (MM/DD/YYYY) 01/29/1997
136 To (MM/DD/YYYY) 01/29/2047
l Part V - Computation of Amount Payable per Tax Regime ]
Description A. Total Exempt B. Total Special C. Total Regular D. Total All Columns
7 TOTAL INCOME TAX DUE (OVERPAYMENT)
(From Schedule 1 item 168/16C/160) (To Part Il Item 16) 0,00 9 611,896 611,896
8 Less: Tax Credits/Payments
(From Schedule 8 ltem 13) (To Part il item 17) 0 0 481,391 481,391
9 NET TAX PAYABLE (OVERPAYMENT)
ltem 37 Less ltem 38) (To Part il item 18) 0 0 130,505 130,505
Add Penalties
140 Surcharge 0
41 Interest °
42 Compromise [ 0]
43 Total Penalties(Sum of items 40 to 42) (To part I/ item 19) 0
144 TOTAL AMOUNT PAYABLE (OVERPAYMENT) (Sum of items 39 and 43) (To Part Il ltern 20) 130,505
I Part VI - Information - External Auditor/Accredited Tax Agent ]
45 Name of External Auditor/Accredited Tax Agent
AMC AND ASSOCIATES
| asn flate {115 [-435 {-Jooo |
47 Name of Signing Partner (if External Auditor is a Partnership)
ARIEL D. GONZALEZ e -
| asmn | [169 |-le8s [{-Jo77 {-[ooo f
9 BIR Accreditation No. EO Issue Date (MM/DD/YYYY) 51 Expiry Date (MM/DD)

08 003584 -} 001 -] 2019 ] 103/05/2019 | 03/05/2022 i




Annual Income Tax Return

BIR Form No.
1702-MX

I B e e I [

Page 3 - Schedules 1 & 2 June 2013
1702-MX06/13P3}
TIN Registered Name
002 - 838 - 406 - 000 PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC

columns below.

instructions: A. Fill up the applicable columns befow, if there is only one activity/program under EXEMPT and/or SPECIAL Tax Regimes.
B. Use as many Part Vill-Mandatory Attachments per Activity as necessary, if there are more than one ncnvmeslpmgrams under EXEMPT and/or
SPECIAL Tax Regimes. Consolidated amounts from Part VIIl Mandatory Attachments PER TAX REGIME shall be refl

d under the p g

Part Vil - SCHEDULES |

ISchedule 1- COMPUTATION OF TAX Per Tax Regime

|

Description A. Total Exempt B. Total Special C. Total Regular D. Total All Columns
1 Net SlhdRmnunmmlmle
(Fom Schaduie 3 e £) and 37,302,349 0 0 37,302,349
(From of of Part Vili Sched 8 ftom 1)
2 Less: Cost of Sales/Services 0 0 0 0
{From Schwduin 3 item 27) (From a8 of Part Vil Sched 6 kem 2)
3 Gross Income from O
e o rom Opermion 37,302,349 0 0 37,302,349
4 Add: Other Taxable | Sy ted o Final T:
T 67,337,605 0 2,039,652 69,377,257
5 Total Gross IncomelGross Taxable Inc
e T e il 104,639,954 0 2,038,652 106,679,606
6 Ordi Allowabls (lemized Deduction!
o e sty 42,875,412 0 0 42,875,412
T Special Aflowrable temized Deductions: 0 0 0 B 0
{From Schecute 6 Kem 5) (From o of Pant Vil Sched B flem 7)
8 NOLCOlemyhﬂnou laxable under Sec. 27 (Ato C). i
£6¢ 260AK1) & 0 0 0
(A)B)(b)of the Tax Code]
{From Schedido 7A ke BD) (From ol of Part VItI Sched B lom )
8 Total Hemized Deducti
et 42,875,412 0 0 42,875,412
10 Nel Taxabla income/Net I
ey neome 61,764,542 0 2,039,652 63,804,194
N ot ettt 0% | 00 v 4| 200 v
121 Tax D iher than MCIT
ol 0 0 611,896 611,896
13 Igfmsyhmv of Other Gavt. Agencies, if Remitted 0 0 0
14 Net I Tax Due lo National Governmant
ey o 0 611,896 611,896
15 MCIT (2% of Grass Income in ltam 5) 40,793 40,793
16 Total Income Tax Due (Overpayment)
(Hem 163 = ke 146} (ilem 16C » Normal
tncoma Taxlo kem 12C of WCIT i em 0 611,896 611,896
{ltem 160 = Sum af Hems 168 & 16C) ;
| _(To PatV o 378073709
| Schedute 2 - Tax Relief Availment |
Description A. Total Exempt B. Total Special C. Total Regular D. Total All Columns
1 Regular Income Tax Othe: Oue
ok o 0 ot ekane e bnio 0 E e 8 108 o Sl ) 18,529,363 0 o 18,529,363
2 Special Alowable ltemized Deductions 0 0 0 0
(30% of tha appiicable Total in Schedule G item 5)
3 Sub-Total (Sum of toms 1 &2) 18,529,363 0 0 18,529,363
4 Less: Income Tax Due (From Sched 1 fiem 166) 0 0 0 0
§ Tax Relie! Availment before Specia Tax Credil y
D St bokim Special T 18,529,363 0 0 18,529,363
6 Add: Special Tax Crodits (From Schodulo 8 Kom 10) 0 4] 0 0
7 Total Tax Ralief Avallment (Sum of koms 5 &6) 18,529,363 1] ] 18,529,363
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BIR Form No.
Annual Income Tax Return 1702-MX .m M%Pﬁﬁm.' l”
Page 4 - Schedule 3 June 2013 e
1702-MX06/13P4|
TIN Registered Name
002 - 838 - 406 - 000 PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC

Schedule 3 - Sales/Revenues/Receipts/Fees A. Total mt B. Total Special C. Total Rngular D. Total All Columns
1 Sales of Goods/Properties [} 4] 0 0
2 Sales of Services 37,302,349 0 Q 37,302,349
3 Lease of Properties o 0 4] 0 0
4 Total (Sum of ltems 1 to 3) 37,302,349 0 of 37,302,349
5 Less: Salei Returns, f!_lowances & Discounts 0 0 0 .0
i EETeD g 0 BT
Schedule 3A - Costof Sales ) A. Total Exempt B. Total Special C. Total Regular | D. Total All Columns
1 Merchandise Inventory, Beginning 0 0 0 0
2 Add: Purchases of Merchandise 0 0 0 0
3 Tosl‘::Lo:’(l‘T::ﬁs&AZ\;aﬂable for Sale ) 0 ) )
4 Less: Merchandise Inventory, Ending 0 0 0 0
5 Cost of Sales (item 3 Less ltem 4) (To ltern 27) 0 0 0 0
Schedlle 38 Cost ol Bela ctiria ) A. Total Exempt B. Total Special C. Total Regular | D. Total All Columns
6 Direct Materials, Beginning 0 0 0 0
7 Add: Purchases 0 0 0f 0
8 Materials Available for Use (Sum of items 6 & 7) [} 4} 0 0
9 Less: Direct Materials, Ending 0 0 0 Q
10 Raw Materials Used (Item 8 Less ltem 9) 0 0 0 0
11 Direct Labor 0 0 0 N 0
12 Manufacturing Overhead 0 0 0f 0
13 ;rsout:I ygnuﬁztganzg) Cost ) 0 ) o
14 Add: Work in Process, Beginning 0 0 0 0
15 Less: Work in Process, Ending 0 0 0 0
16 Cost of Goods Manufactured 0 ) 0 0

SSum of llems 13 & 14 L_e_siMﬁj
17 Add: Finished Goods, Beginning 0 0 0 0
18 Less: Finished Goods,Ending 0 0 0 0
19 Cost of Goods Manufactured & Sold ) ;) ) ”0

‘Sum of items 16 & 17 Less ftem 18“!0 tem 27) ]
Schedule 3C - Cost of Services
go&l:::::rg:g::ﬁl:rs;v:v’:ﬁ:sﬁmiz;m:;a:r:%zr::ﬂy Incurred A. Total Exempt B. Total Special C. Total Regular D. Total Ail Columns
20 Direct Charges - Salaries, Wages & Benefits 0 0 0 0
21 Direct Charges - Materials, Supplies & Facilities 0 0 0 0}
22 Direct Charges - Depreciation Q 0 0 0
23 Direct Charges - Rental 0 0 0 ]
24 Direct Charges - Outside Services 0 0 0 0} |
25 Direct Charges - Others Q 0 0 0
26 Total Cost of Services ) 0 ) )

SSurn of ltems 20 to 25) (To ltem 27) 1
27 Total Cost of Sales/Services

{Sum of ltems 5,19 & 28, if applicable) 1] 0 0 0

(Zo Schedule 1 ltem 2)

sy
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T T
BIR Form No.
Annual Income Tax Return | 4702-mx N
Page 5 - Schedules 4 & 5 June 2013 .I" mw.-lpﬁs&ﬁ*ll " I
RSN ==—n. - e _____1702:MX06/13p5)
TN = Registered Name - 1
! 002 - 838 - 406 - 000 PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC
/|Schedule 4 - Other le | not Subjected to Final
i Tax A. Total Exempt B. Total Special C. Total Regular |D. Total All Columns
| (Attach additional sheel/s.if neces:
E :NSURANCE FUND J 28,995,867 0 0 28,995‘867}
2 ¥ 1 1
E GENERAL FUND ] 15'170'110} 0 0 15,170,1@[
E :(i)THERS t 23.171‘628:| 0 2,039,652 25.211.280:'
| e g S| o zmeem|  wuna]
;‘ Schedule 5 'Aggcd,f';:gﬁc:,; shw/; ,f m. d Ded A. Total aemptT_B. Total Special I C. Total Regular |D. Total All Columns
i{f 1 Advertising and Promotions 0 0 0 0l
{[[Amortizations (Specify on Items 2,3 and 4) !
!tz ; ]
| A 14
| ] | |
3 | { =l
]
5 5 Bad Debts 3,300,000 0 0 3,300,000
{It'® Charitable Contributions 0 0 0 0
I 7 Commissions 106,059 0 0 108,059
, 8 Communication, Light and Water 877,199 0 0 877.199
! 9 Depletion 0 0 0 0
{i[10 Depreciation 1,528,373 0 0 1,528,373
i 11 Director’s Fees 0 0 0 0
| 12 Fringe Benefits 0 0 0 0
13 Fuel and Oil 0 0 0 0
14 Insurance 8,515,000 0 0 8,515,000
15 Interest 0 0 ] 0
16 Janitorial and Messengerial Services 0 0 0 0
1117 Losses 0 0 0 0
; 18 Management and Consultancy Fee 0 0 0 0
it 19 Miscellaneous 1,161,164 0 0 1,161,164
il 20 Office Supplies 1,172,808 0 0 1,172,809
!H 21 Other Services 0 0 0 0
I 22 Professional Fees 167,000 0 0 167,000
11| 23 Rental 0 0 0 0
: :: :[L:a ‘;:PJEE%ZEE‘EEEM 139417} o] 0 139.417:]
f gMa?:;r'isalas?Sugg‘ies) o] 0 J 0.]
i 26 Representation and Entertainment 0 0 0 0
27 Research and Development 0 0 0 0
28 Royalties 0 0 0 0
1“ 29 Salaries and Allowances 16,079,722 0 0 16,079,722
ﬂ 30 Security Services 0 0 0 0
31555, GSIS, Philhealth, HDMF and Other Contributions 0 0 0 0
} 32 Taxes and Licenses 505,251 0 0 505,251
i 33 Tolling Fees 0 0 0 0
1 34 Training and Seminars 0 0 0 0
| B — T K I—
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BIR Form No.
Annual Income Tax Return 17020
“
wezors | I R s S R I 1
* R . = = i = i Im-MXW‘SPS.
TIN Registered Name
002 - 838 - 406 - 000 PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC
Schedule 5 - Ordinary Allowable ftemized Deductions (Continued from Previous Page,
Others [Specify below; Attach additional sheel(s), if 2 D. Totat All
ecessary] A. Total Exempt B. Total Special C. Total Regular Coliliniinia
‘1136
MEETINGS AND CONFERENCE i 2,428,996 o [} 2.428.996}
37 !
ADMINISTRATIVE | 1,306.448 0(] 0 1,306,448|!
38 1 |I
CONTRACTOR'S FEE I 105,525 Q 0 105.525',
39 ! ‘
[MMARKETING ; 7 114,036[] 0 0 114.036I
| b rery ey 42,875,412 0 0 42,875,412
Schodule 3&5:‘:‘" Miouably temized Decuctions A Total Exempt 8.Total Special | C. Total Regular D. Total AR Columns |
1 Descoption LogaiBass }
Hh
2]
I r—— |
4 L
[ o ot o iy i o 0 0 0 of
‘ ;
‘I_Schedule 7 - Computation of Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) [only for those taxable under Sec. 2 (Ao C):Sec. 28(A)1S (ANE)(b)]
Il 1 Gross Income 0
il 2 Less: Total Deductions Exclusive of NOLCO&Deduction Under Special Law 5 0
3 Net Operating Loss (Item 1 Less Item 2) (To Schedule 7A) 0

‘ ISchedule 7A - Computation of Available Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO)

ll Net Operating Loss B) NOLCO Applied Previous Year

it Year Incurred 1 A) Amount

I a 0
s

i s

I

lliContinuation of Schedule 7A (item numbers continue from table ebove)

C) NOLCO Expired D) NOLCO Applied Current Year E) Net Operating Loss(Unapplied)
4 | of f] o |l of
5 |[ | 11 & ,
|
6 |} i il |
7 il ‘i |
il g |Total NOLCO P
(Sum of items 4D to 7D) (To Schedule 1 Item 8)
s " . D.Totat All
chedule 8 - Tax Credits/Payments A.Total Exempt B.Total Special C.Total Regular Columns
1 Prior Year's Excess Credits Other Than MCIT | oif | ol | aif | [}
2 Income Tax Payments under MCIT from 7
Previous Quarter/s I ol ] 9 r ot ol -
3 Income Tax Pay ts under Reg ormal Rate from 1
Previous Quarter/s I of | ol 439.300]) | 439,300
il 4 Excess MCIT Applied this Current Taxable Year 1
Wl (From Schedute 9 item 4F) | olf | oif | ol | o]
5 Creditable Tax Withheld from Previous Quarter/s | off | ojf | oif | o
6 Creditable Tax Withheld per BIR Form No. 2307 for the l 22,091
4th Quarter -

PRAXIS FIDES ANNUAL REPORT



Annual Income Tax Return

BIR Form No.

1702-MX . f
Page 7 - Schedules 8 to 10 June 2013 e
e e i 1702:MX06/13P7
IN |Registered Name
002 - 838 - 406 - 000 l PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC
: Schedule 8 - Tax Credits/Payments (Continued from Previous Page) l

H Description A.Total Exoma l B.Total S al C.Total Regular D.Total All Columns
7 Foreign Tax Credits, if applicable 0 0 0 0!
8 Tax Paid in Retumn Previously Filed, if this is an ° 0 ) U'I
Amended Return )
/[t 9 Income Tax Payments under Special Rate from Previous 0 o'l oy o’,
Quarter/s -4 2
It 10 Special Tax Credits (To Scheduic 2 tem 6) 0 0} 0 0]
[ Other Credits/Payments (Specify Below): |
iRk T 1
| 1 o}
]
112 oll
I i 1

|[l 13 Total Tax Credits/Payments

Sum of ltems 1 to 12) (To Part V item 38) ul O.I 481391 48"391.[

A2 1

ontinuation if Schedule 9 (item numbers continue from table above)

wiNn |-

4 Total Excess MCIT (Sum of Column for ltems 1F lo 3F)

(To Schedule 8 ltem 4)

/II'Schedule 10 - Reconciliation of Net income per Books
||} Against Taxable Income
H(Attach additional sheels. il necessary)

A. Total Exempt

B. Total Special

C. Total Regular

D. Total All Columns

|/l 1 Net Income (Loss) per books

73,966,445

1,427,757

75,394,202

|[I'Add: Non-deductible Expenses/Taxable Other Income

2

3,048,207

611,895

[[§ TAX EXPENSE i

3,660,102 |
G |

3

4 Total (Sum of items 1 to 3)

77,014,652

2,039,652

3
1
1
79,054,304

] Less: A) Non-Taxable Income and Income Subjected to Final

I

i
15,250,110

1
15,250,110}

; INTEREST INCOME |

e
|

ams

[ eine s
| B) Special Deductions

JI

nz

|

e

1 9 Total (Sum of items 5 to 8)

15,250,110

0

15,250,110

61,764,542

|l 10 Net Taxable Income (Loss) (item 4 Less Item 9)

o

2,039,652

63,804,194

PRAXIS FIDES ANNUAL REPORT




BIR Form No.
| Annual Income Tax Return 1702-MX ."I mw" Pﬁ"ﬁmll ,”
Page 8 - Schedules 11 & 12 June 2013 e B
i g i _ } __1702-MX06/13P8
N Registered Name
002 - 838 - 406 - 000 PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC
}I!Schedule 11 - Balance Sheet i
| Assets
|1 Current Assets i 783,789,026
il 2 Long-Term Investment 1l 122,304,647
' 3 Property, Plant and Equipment - Net 14,117,616
Ha Long-Term Receivables H 141,836,402
/I § Intangible Assets i 0
||l 6 Other Assets 0
1| 7 Total Assets (Sum of tems 1 to 6) H 1,062,047,691
Liabilities and Equity

1 8 Current Liabilities H 797,398,627
19 Long-Term Liabilities il 0

10 Deferred Credits i 0
[ 11 Other Liabilities 13,118,543
12 Total Liabilities (Sum of items 8 to 11) 810,517,170
|| 13 Capital Stock 0
II 14 Additional Paid-in Capital ] 0
115 Retained Eamings {|251,530,521
16 Total Equity (Sum of ltems 13 to 15) i 251,530,521
117 Total Liabilities and Equity (Sum of items 12 & 16) i 1,062,047,691
|| Schedule 12- Stackholders Partners Members Information  (Top 20 stockholders, partners or members)
i (On column 3 enter the amount of capilal contribulion and on the last column enler the percentage this represents on the entire ownership)
| REGISTERED NAME TIN Capiial Coniribution AT

[HERNANDEZ MILAGROS D_| [165_J[574_T326_Jlooo ] e e 476,801 Lo
DEL ROSARIO, EDERLINDA | [108” iJoie_Jeoa iJooo | . 440,220} 0.1

MENDOZA MERLIE
[MIRANDA URBANA

[11sflea1 J311_Jfooo ]
164_[[355 573 oo
Jsoo_[fe26_J292 jJooo_|
[226_J[695_Jees_[Jooo |

378,093|

371607
324,644

| 247,155

B 247,155/
231840

T—— [_oogf
— szroo7] || 007
i 1 r""‘T

I —r

i o 355.7_e_§j [ o8]
7

[MATIAS MARIAELIZA | 239_|[118_]006_[000
[maoALACECLIA | 204_[e67_J749_[looo_|
SANTOS DIVINA GRACIA 1851|109 _]217_1[000
SALAZAR JOCELYN GERMAI] [171_J[130_Jsee_[[ooo
MARTIN IRIS DEL ROSARIO 228_J[246 Joas ovo ]
[COMILANG ROSALINDA 025 |[637_]121_|[000
[BALAGTAS LUCIANO 916 {|903 {447 !Jooo |
[conzatesiuciana | [147_Jle77_Jo92 Jfooo ]
[MIRANDA JESSALYN | 306_I[s50 Jes7 [ooo ]
GERMANRUSTICO | 448|284 {809 1|000 |
BALTAZARFR NAP_____| [290_J[ss_Jss7_[[ooo |
S — o I o o o o

| 197,655

L N 219,450 0.05
. 217,152 0.05]
| 202,298 0.04]

172,869

i__ 228,052,756

[oTHERS

fooo Tfooo_Jooo

o 228,052,756

PRAXIS FIDES ANNUAL REPORT
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e 2013 1702-MX06/13

TIN Registered Name
002 - 838 - 406 - 000 PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC

‘il Schedule 13 - Suppl ual Information (Attach additional sheet/s, :Inecessaly) i

1) Gross Income/ 2
. B) Actual Amount/Fair Market

Receipts Subjected to A) Exempt C) Final Tax Withheld/Paid

Final Withholding Value/Net Capital Gains

i{| 1 Interests

il 2 Royalties
i
||t 3 Dividends

=1 =1 =
‘QOOO

0
0
0
it Pnzes and Wmmngs " -.21

A) Sale/Exchange #1

1) Sale/Exchange of Real Prupemes

B) Sale/Exchange #2

5 Descnphon of Property (e. g Iand |mprovernenl etc ) ‘u

7 Certificate Authorizing Registration (CAR) No

6 OCT/TCT/CCT/Tax Declaration No. "I s ,i‘ﬁ =

8 Actual Amount/Fair Market Value/Net Capital Gains
1| 9 Final Tax Withheld/Paid !r = ot = ‘! = s =

Ill) Sale/Exchange of Shares of §t§ck o
10 Kind (PS/CS)/Stock Certificate Series No.

11 Ceniﬁcate Authorizing Registration (CAR) No. | | ] |

12NumberofShares - I - —— 0‘-" e - ol

1aDateoflssue(MMlDDlYYYY) l S l" .l

14 Actual AmounUFalr Market Value/Net Capxka! Gams [ -

15 Final Tax Withheld/Paid I — e

V) Olher Income (Spec:fy) - _. T ) A) Olher Income #1 ‘| ~_ B)Otherincome #2
16 Other Income Subject to Flnal Tax Under Sectnons [ i I i
57(A)/127/others of the Tax Code, as amended (Specify)

7 Acual AouniFair Markel ValueNet Captal Gains__|[—————— | ——————%

18 Final Tax Withheld/Paid "l

19 Total Final Tax Withheld/Paid(Sum of items 1C to 4C, 9A, 9B, 15A, 15B, 18A & 18B) i OS'

VSchedule 14-Gross ln /Receipts E ‘from Tax

Lol

1 Return of Premlum (Actua/ Amount/Falr Markel Value} r

A) Personal/Real Properties B) Personal/Real Properties
 thru Gifts, , Beque #1 #2

)} PersonallReal Properﬂes Received I

2 Desonphon of Propeny (e g Iand lmprovemenl etc) h

3 Mode of Transfer (e g Donallon)

R == )
4Cerm' cate Authonzmg Regustratlon (CAR) No W e . i

> = - o]
5Ac1ualAmountIFalrMarketValue 5“ D . i § - : =

Il) Other Exempt IncomeIRecelpts
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6/29/2020 Gmail - Fw: eSubmission Validation Report

P .
g?l V"’é Gma” jeremieh marie senerado <seneradojeremiehmarie@gmail.com>

Fw: eSubmission Validation Report
5 messages

Ellaine Carla Pasco <ellainecarlapasco@yahoo.com> Sun, Mar 29, 2020 at 8:41 PM
To: Jeremieh Marie Senerado <seneradojeremiehmarie@gmail.com>
Cc: Rechel Cheong <cheong.rechel@gmail.com>, Maricel De Torres <detorres_maricel@yahoo.com>

Hi Ms. Jeremieh,

Forwarding din po 'yung esub po sa BIR. Ito po yata 'yung kasama din sa pagpapareceive sa BIR ng audited FS.
pkicheck na Ing din po kung ito nga po 'yun. Salamat po.

Ellaine

----- Forwarded Message -----

From: Praxis Fides Malolos <praxisfides@gmail.com>
To: Ellaine Carla Pasco <ellainecarlapasco@yahoo.com>
Sent: Sunday, 29 March 2020, 08:26:22 pm GMT+8
Subject: Fwd: eSubmission Validation Report

—memmmaean Forwarded message ---------

From: esubmission <esubmission@bir.gov.ph>
Date: Sun, Feb 9, 2020 at 4:00 AM

Subject: eSubmission Validation Report

To: <praxisfides@gmail.com>

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT RECEIPT NUMBER: 20200209-K138715
This is to confirm receipt of the file(s) as stated below:
Total attachment/file(s) received : 12

No. of valid file(s) 112
No. of invalid file(s) s0

We have validated your submission in compliance with existing BIR regulations.

Find below the details of your submission:

Date of Submission: 1/30/2020 3:32:08 PM
Filename(s):
1. Attachment : 00283840600000120191702.DAT
00283840600000120191702.DAT - VALID
CONFIRMATION RECEIPT NUMBER - 2020-0000367441
2. Attachment : 00283840600000220191702.DAT
00283840600000220191702.DAT - VALID
CONFIRMATION RECEIPT NUMBER - 2020-0000367442
3. Attachment : 00283840600000320191702.DAT
00283840600000320191702.DAT - VALID
CONFIRMATION RECEIPT NUMBER - 2020-0000367443
4. Attachment : 00283840600000420191702.DAT
00283840600000420191702.DAT - VALID
CONFIRMATION RECEIPT NUMBER - 2020-0000367444
5. Attachment : 00283840600000520191702.DAT
00283840600000520191702.DAT - VALID
CONFIRMATION RECEIPT NUMBER - 2020-0000367445
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6. Attachment : 00283840600000620191702.DAT
00283840600000620191702.DAT - VALID
CONFIRMATION RECEIPT NUMBER - 2020-0000367446
7. Attachment : 00283840600000720191702.DAT
00283840600000720191702.DAT - VALID
CONFIRMATION RECEIPT NUMBER - 2020-0000367447
8. Attachment : 00283840600000820191702.DAT '
00283840600000820191702.DAT - VALID
CONFIRMATION RECEIPT NUMBER - 2020-0000367448
9. Attachment : 00283840600000920191702.DAT
00283840600000920191702.DAT - VALID
CONFIRMATION RECEIPT NUMBER - 2020-0000367449
10. Attachment : 00283840600001020191702.DAT
00283840600001020191702.DAT - VALID
CONFIRMATION RECEIPT NUMBER - 2020-0000367450
11. Attachment : 00283840600001120191702.DAT
00283840600001120191702.DAT - VALID
CONFIRMATION RECEIPT NUMBER - 2020-0000367451
12. Attachment : 00283840600001220191702.DAT
00283840600001220191702.DAT - VALID
CONFIRMATION RECEIPT NUMBER - 2020-0000367452

VALIDATION REPORT:
1. Attachment : 00283840600000120191702.DAT

TIN of Withholding Agent TIN: 002838406-0000
Alphalist Form 11702
Taxable Month :01/2019

LINE NUM SCHEDULE ERROR DESCRIPTION

0000000000 No Errors Encountered

2. Attachment : 00283840600000220191702.DAT

TIN of Withholding Agent TIN: 002838406-0000
Alphalist Form 11702
Taxable Month : 02/2019

LINENUM  SCHEDULE ERROR DESCRIPTION

0000000000 No Errors Encountered

3. Attachment : 00283840600000320191702.DAT

TIN of Withholding Agent TIN: 002838406-0000
Alphalist Form 11702
Taxable Month : 03/2019

LINENUM  SCHEDULE ERROR DESCRIPTION

0000000000 No Errors Encountered

4. Attachment : 00283840600000420191702.DAT

TIN of Withholding Agent TIN: 002838406-0000
Alphalist Form 11702
Taxable Month : 04/2019
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LINE NUM SCHEDULE ERROR DESCRIPTION

0000000000 No Errors Encountered

5. Attachment : 00283840600000520191702.DAT
TIN of Withholding Agent TIN: 002838406-0000

Alphalist Form 11702
Taxable Month : 05/2019

LINE NUM SCHEDULE ERROR DESCRIPTION

0000000000 No Errors Encountered

6. Attachment : 00283840600000620191702.DAT
TIN of Withholding Agent TIN: 002838406-0000

Alphalist Form 11702
Taxable Month : 06/2019

LINE NUM SCHEDULE ERROR DESCRIPTION

0000000000 No Errors Encountered

7. Attachment : 00283840600000720191702.DAT
TIN of Withholding Agent TIN: 002838406-0000

Alphalist Form $1702
Taxable Month 1 07/2019

LINE NUM SCHEDULE ERROR DESCRIPTION

0000000000 No Errors Encountered

8. Attachment : 00283840600000820191702.DAT
TIN of Withholding Agent TIN: 002838406-0000
Alphalist Form 1702
Taxable Month 1 08/2019

LINE NUM SCHEDULE ERROR DESCRIPTION

0000000000 No Errors Encountered

9. Attachment : 00283840600000920191702.DAT

TIN of Withholding Agent TIN: 002838406-0000
Alphalist Form 11702
Taxable Month - 09/2019

LINENUM  SCHEDULE ERROR DESCRIPTION

0000000000 No Errors Encountered
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10. Attachment : 00283840600001020191702.DAT
TIN of Withholding Agent TIN: 002838406-0000

Alphalist Form 11702
Taxable Month :10/2019

LINENUM  SCHEDULE ERROR DESCRIPTION

0000000000 No Errors Encountered

11. Attachment : 00283840600001120191702.DAT
TIN of Withholding Agent TIN: 002838406-0000

Alphalist Form 11702
Taxable Month :11/2019

LINENUM  SCHEDULE ERROR DESCRIPTION

0000000000 No Errors Encountered

12. Attachment : 00283840600001220191702.DAT
TIN of Withholding Agent TIN: 002838406-0000

Alphalist Form 11702
Taxable Month 1 12/2019

LINENUM  SCHEDULE ERROR DESCRIPTION

0000000000 No Errors Encountered

Thank You.

This is a system generated report. For inquiries, please email us at contact_us@bir.gov.ph
or call us at 981-7020 / 981-7030 / 981-7046 / 981-7040 / 981-7003.

This email and its attachments may be confidential and are intended solely
for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed.

If you are not the intended recipient of this email and its attachments, you
must take no action based upon them, nor must you disseminate, distribute or
copy this e-mail. Please contact the sender immediately if you believe you
have received this email in error.

E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free. The
recipient should check this email and any attachments for the presence of
viruses. The Bureau of Internal Revenue does not accept liability for any
errors or omissions in the contents of this message which arise as a result
of e-mail transmission.
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PRAXIS FIDES
MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.

#35 Paseo del Congreso, Catmon, City of Malolos, Bulacan
Tel. No. (044) 791-3558: (044) 662-4288

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESP‘ONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The management of Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. is responsible for all information and
representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Return for the year ended December 31, 2019.. ;'

Management is likewise responsible for all information and representations contained in the financial
statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same reporting period.
Furthermore, the management is responsible for all information and representations contained in all the
other tax returns filed for the reporting period, including, but not limited, to the value added tax and/or
percentage tax returns, withholding tax returns, documentary stamp tax returns, and any and all other tax
returns.

In this regard, the management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2019 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in accordance with the books
and records of Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Association, Inc., complete and correct in all material
respects. Management likewise affirms that:

a)

b)

the Annual Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the National
Internal Revenue Code, as amended and pertinent tax regulations and other issuances of the
Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial statements
pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of the income tax return pursuant to tax
accounting rules has been reported as reconciling items and maintained in the association books and
records in accordance with the requirements of Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant
issuances; and,

Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. has filed all applicable tax returns, reports and
statements required to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and
other impositions shown thereon to be due and payable have been paid for the reporting period, except
those contested in good faith.

%C‘W

lﬁR. GENER C. LUCIANO REV.FR.] DJ. CRUZ
President

MR. RAMON VJ/BAGAY
Chairman

easurer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TO ACCOMPANY INCOME TAX RETURN

The Board of Trustees

Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
(A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Organization)

35 Paseo del Congreso, Catmon

Malolos, Bulacan

We have audited the financial statements of Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. for
the year ended December 31, 2019, on which we have rendered the attached report dated
June 11, 2020.

In compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, we are stating that no partner of our Firm is
related by consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or principal members of the
Association.

AMC & ASSOCIATES

By: Ariel D. Gonzales é

Partner

CPA Certification No. 89570

TIN 169-688-077-000

PTR No. 8125084, Jan. 7, 2020, Makati City

BIR Accreditation No. 08-003584-1-2019
(Mar. 06, 2019 to Mar. 05, 2022)

BSP Accreditation (Category B)
(valid until Dec. 31, 2020)

IC Accreditation No. SP-2018/003-R
(Mar. 3, 2018 to Mar. 2, 2021)

SEC Accreditation No. 1804-A (Group C)
(Jan. 16, 2020 to Jan. 15, 2023)

June 11, 2020

FIRM ACCREDITATION

Aquino, Mata, Calica & Associates

BOA Accreditation No. 4275 - valid until June 28, 2023

BIR Accreditation No. 08-002582-0-2017 - valid until December 21, 2020

SEC Accreditation No. 0390-F (Group A) - January 16, 2020 to January 15, 2023
IC Accreditation No. F-2018/002-R - March 3, 2018 to March 2, 2021

BSP Accreditation (Category B) - valid until December 31, 2020

DA No. - 8 to March 19, 2021
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Trustees 35 Paseo del Congreso, Catmon
Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. Malolos, Bulacan
(A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Organization)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
(the Association), which comprise the statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in fund balance and statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Association as at December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) applicable to Mutual Benefit Associations
(MBAs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors” Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audits of the financial statements
in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with PFRS applicable to MBAs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Association or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Asggs

reporting process. E S E D
[0,;0:1 30 zczu:l

MAFIANNE R, DAVID

Suite 1805 - 1807 Cityland Condominium 10, Tower 2, H.V. Dela Costa St., Makati City, Philippines
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Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information for the year ended
December 31, 2019 required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue as disclosed in Note 30 to the
financial statements is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS applicable to MBAs. Such
supplementary information is the responsibility of management. The supplementary information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

AMC & ASSOCIATES

Q«Lp D . Gaugt
By: Ariel D. Gonzales

Partner

CPA Certification No. 89570

TIN 169-688-077-000

PTR No. 8125084, Jan. 7, 2020, Makati City

BIR Accreditation No. 08-003584-1-2019
(Mar. 06, 2019 to Mar. 05, 2022)

BSP Accreditation (Category B)
(valid until Dec. 31, 2020)

IC Accreditation No. SP-2018/003-R
(Mar. 3, 2018 to Mar. 2, 2021)

SEC Accreditation No. 1804-A (Group C)
(Jan. 16, 2020 to Jan. 15, 2023)

June 11, 2020
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FIRM ACCREDITATION

Aquino, Mata, Calica & Associates

BOA Accreditation No. 4275 - valid until June 28, 2023

BIR Accreditation No. 08-002582-0-2017 - valid until December 21, 2020

SEC Accreditation No. 0390-F (Group A) - January 16, 2020 to January 15, 2023
IC Accreditation No. F-2018/002-R - March 3, 2018 to March 2, 2021

BSP Accreditation (Category B) - valid until December 31, 2020
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PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(Amounts in Philippine Peso)
2018 2017
2019 (AsR d) (As R 1)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) P 168,488,088 P 199,956,072 P 209,768,424
Short-term investments (Note 6) 158,412,291 81,248,155 30,988,917
Loans and other receivables (Note 7) 242,973,384 222,805,766 227,223,792
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (Note 9) 212,096,983 131,196,331 99,593,135
Prepayments 1,818,280 683,837 986,359
Total Current Assets ’ 783,789,026 635,890,161 568,560,627
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Loans and other receivables (Note 7) 141,836,402 181,840,569 147,747,509
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (Note 10) 27,500,000 27,500,000 22,500,000
Financial assets at amortized cost (Note 8) 7,956,705 3,000,000 -
Property and equipment (Note 11) 14,117,616 15,376,247 16,245,764
Investment property (Note 12) 86,847,942 91,057,602 93,037,255
Total Non-current Assets . 278,258,665 318,774,418 279,530,528
TOTAL ASSETS P 1,062,047,691 P 954,664,579 P 848,091,155
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities (Nofe 13) P 9240892 P 10,722,020 P 12,971,179
Liability on individual equity value (Note 14) 712,223,930 677,322,919 601,199,316
Basic contingent benefit reserve (Note 15) ‘ 1,236,053 1,167,724 982,862
Claims payable on basic contingent benefit (Note 16) 1,890,000 1,730,000 1,835,000
Income tax payable 130,505 96,152 -
Total Current Liabilities 724,721,380 691,038,815 616,988,357
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities (Note 13) 87,824 42,324 151,017
Reti benefit obligation (Note 21) 13,030,720 6,627,121 6,627,121 3 =
Total Non-Current Liabilities . 13,118,544 6,669,445 6,778,138
Total Liabilities 737,839,924 697,708,260 623,766,495
FUND BALANCE
Free and unassigned fund balance 291,824,537 226,104,156 208,885,809
Assigned fund balance (Note 18) 47,348,281 38,000,000 38,000,000
Acc lated other comprehensive loss (Note 18) ( 14,965,051) ( 7,147,837) ( 22,561,149)
Total Fund Balance 324,207,767 256,956,319 224,324,660
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE r 1,062,047,691 P 954,664,579 P 848,091,155

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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LLECTION SECTION
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PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(Amounts in Philippine Peso)
2019 2018
REVENUES
Interest on:
Loans (Note 7) 37,302,349 P 38,872,048
Investment securities and
deposits with banks (Notes 5, 6, and 8) 15,250,110 7,306,446
Income from sale of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 9) 3,235,049 2,096,938
Insurance fund (Note 18) 28,995,867 25,631,692
General fund (Note 18) 15,170,110 13,602,734
Service charges and fees (Note 7) 6,935,069 7,477,313
Membership fees (Note 18) 797,500 1,194,300
Others (Note 17) 9,040,825 6,760,107
116,726,879 102,941,578
EXPENSES
Fair value loss (gain) on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 9) 5,202,837 3,978,709
Operating expenses (Note 17) 34,360,412 33,043,605
Benefit expenses (Note 17) 8,515,000 8,455,000
37,672,575 45,477,314
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 79,054,304 57,464,264
TAX EXPENSE (Note 22) 3,660,102 1,996,005
NET PROFIT 75,394,202 55,468,259
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment
defined benefit obligation (Notes 19 and 21) 7,817,214 ) e
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 67,576,988 P 55,468,259

See Notes to Financial Statements.

0. 2!

TPLARIDEL, BULACAN
P EVVE D

Waozﬁz]

ArIANNE 8. DAVID
MALL SE N

PRAXIS FIDES ANNUAL REPORT | 45




PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.,

(A Nou-Stock, Non-Profit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019, 2018 AND 2017

(Amonnts in Philippine Peso)

O EMEARIERTR Ay

Free and Ui igned Assigned Fund Accumulated Other Total
Fund balance Balance Comprehensive Loss (As Restated)
Balance at January 1, 2019 (Nolcs 18 and 19)

As previously reporled r 224,104,156 P 40,000,000 ( P 7147,837) P 256,956,319

Prior period adjustment (Nole 18) 2,000,000 ( 2,000,000 ) -

As Restated 226,104,156 38,000,000 ( 7,147,837) 256,956,319
Contributions during the year (Nole 18) 145,361,041 - 145,361,041
Wilthdrawals during the year ( 113,101,524) - ( 113,101,524)
Transfer to legal policy reserves (Nole 14) ( 99,925,017 ) - ( 99,925,017 )
Allocation for the year 57,991,679 9,348,281 67,339,960
Total comprehensive revenue for the year 75,394,202 - ( 7.817,214) 67,576,988
Balance at December 31, 2019 (Notes 18 and 19) R 291,824,537 P 47,348,281 ( P 14,965,051) P 324,207,767
Balance at January 1, 2018 (Nofes 18 and 19)

As previously reported P 191,472497 P 40,000,000 ( P 7,147.837) P 224,324,660

Prior period adjustment 2,000,000 ( 2,000,000 ) -

As Restated 193,472,497 38,000,000 ( 7.147,837) 224,324,660
Contributions during the year (Nofe 18) 166,717,862 - 166,717,862
Withdrawals during the year ( 113,430,859 ) - ( 113,430,859)
Transfer to legal policy reserves (Nole 14) ( 11,099,597 ) - ( 11,099,597 )
Allocation for the year (Note 18) ( 65,024,006 ) ( 65,024,006 )
Total comprehensive revenue for the year 55,468,259 - 55,468,259
Balance at December 31, 2018 (Notes 18 and 19) P 226,104,156 P 38,000,000 ( P 7,147837) P 256,956,319

Sec Notes to Financial Statements.
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PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Non-Stock, Nou-Profit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(Amounts in Philippine Peso)
2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax r 79,054,304 P 57,464,264
Adjustments for:
Depreciation (Notes 11 and 12 ) 1,528,373 1,585,794
Impairment losses (Note 7) 3,300,000 5,128,721
Gain on sale of investment property (Note 12) ) { 2,576,617 ) ( 2,910,378)
Unrealized fair value loss (gain) of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss ( 5,202,837 ) 3,978,709
Gain on sale of financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss (Note 9) ( 3,235,049) ( 2,096,938 )
Interest income (Notes 5, 6, 7 and 8) ( 52,552,459) ( 46,178,494 )
Operating profit before working capital changes 20,315,715 16,971,678
Decrease (increase) in loans and other receivables 24,312,872 ( 26,884,374)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments ( 1,134,443) 302,522
Decrease in accounts payable and other liabilities ( 1,435,628) ( 2,318,921)
Decrease in post-employment benefit obligation (Note 21) . ( 1,413,615) -
Increase (decrease) in claims payable on basic contingent benefit 160,000 ( 105,000 )
Increase in basic contingent benefit reserve 68,329 184,862
Cash from (used in) operations 40,873,230 ( 11,849,233)
Interest received on loans and other receivables (Note 7) 29,526,026 30,952,667
Cash paid for income taxes (Note 22) ( 3,625,749) ( 1,938,784 )
Net Cash From Operating Activities 66,773,507 17,164,650
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 21,565,517 15,598,168
Increase in short-term investments ( 77,164,136 ) ( 50,259,238 )
Proceeds from sale of investment property (Note 12) 3,999,538 4,454,118
Interest received on bank deposits and invesment
securites (Noles 5, 6 and 8) 15,250,110 7,306,446
Acquisitions of property and equipment (Note 10) ( 269,742) ( 716,277 )
Decrease in investment property (Note 12) 2,786,739 435913
Additions to financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss { 94,028,283 ) ( 49,083,135 )
Increase in financial assets at amortized cost (Note 8) . { 4,956,705 ) ( 3,000,000)
Increase in financial assets at fair ;
value through other comprehensive income % ( 5,000,000 )
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities ( 132,816,962 ( 80,264,005 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Members' contributions during the year (Note 18) 145,361,041 166,717,862
Allocations during the year 2,315,954 -
Members' withdrawals during the year ( 113,101,524 ) ( 113,430,859 )
Net Cash From Financing Activities 34,575,471 53,287,003
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ( 31,467,984) ( 9,812,352)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 199,956,072 209,768,424

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR (Note 5) P 168,488,088 P 199,956,072

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Organization)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(Amounts in Philippine Peso)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Organization and Objectives

Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. (the Association) was incorporated in the
Philippines on February 17, 1987 primarily to foster brotherhood thru mutual help and
benefit among its members, to encourage the habit of thrift and saving among its members,
to provide financial material aid and comforts to members and their families in cases of
losses, disability, necessities, unemployment, retirement, or old age as may be authorized by
statutes of regulations prescribed by competent authority, and in general to do such acts
and things and to undertake such activities not otherwise prohibited by law which are
calculated to help members and necessary for the accomplishment of the purpose of which
the association has been organized.

The registered office of the Association is located at 35 Paseo del Congreso, Catmon,
Malolos, Bulacan. ‘

Tax Exemption

As a non-stock, non-profit association, the Association is exempt from the payment of
income tax under Section 30c of the National Internal Revenue Code. However, the income
of whatever kind and character of the Association from any of its properties, real or
personal, or from any of its activities conducted for profit, regardless of the disposition
made of such income, shall be subjected to tax. Moreover, interest income derived from
deposit with banks is subject to final tax.

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Association as at and for the year ended December 31, 2019
(including the comparative financial statements as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2018) were authorized for issue by the Association’s Board of Trustees on
June 11, 2020.

MEMBERSHIP

Any person eligible for membership shall become a member of the Association only after
paying the initial membership fee and the first monthly contribution. Every member in
good standing shall have the right, among others, to participate in the distribution of profit
of the Association on the basis of his capital contributions after the Association has set aside
such reserves as may be required by any existing laws and regulations. In addition, the
member can avail of loans in accordance with his borrowing capacity subject to the
limitations as provided for under the existing rules and regulations of the Association.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarized below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

a. Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards for Mutual Benefits
Associations (MBAs)

The financial statements of the Association have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards in the Philippines applicable to MBAs.

Pursuant to Section 189 of The Amended Insurance Code, the Insurance Commission
issued Circular Letter No. 2014-41 dated September 25, 2014 requiring all new and existing
mutual benefits associations doing business in the Philippines to use and maintained the
revised Standard Chart of Accounts (SCA) for MBAs. The SCA is the prescribed
frameworks for Association in the preparation of financial statements.

The SCA for MBAs list a uniform system of account numbers categorized based on MBAs'
revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and fund value for similar transactions and events, in
compliance with the latest Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified by
PERS for each type of assets, liabilities, income and expense. The measurement bases are
more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

b. Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Association presents all items
of income and expenses in a single statement of comprehensive income.

The Association presents a third statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a
retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a material effect on the
information in the statement of financial position at the beginning of the preceding
period. The related notes to the third statement of financial position are not required to
be disclosed.

Accordingly, the adoption of these two new accounting standards did not require the
Association to present its third statement of financial position.

c.  Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Association’s
functional currency and presentation currency, and all values represent absolute
amounts except when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the financial statements of the Association are measured using its
functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Association operates.
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Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

a.  Effective in 2019 that are Relevant to the Association

The Association adopted for the first time the following amendment and interpretation
to PFRS that are relevant to the Association and effective for financial statements for the
annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2018:

PFRS 9 :  Financial Instruments
PFRS 16 :  Leases
International Financial
Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) 23 : Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Annual Improvements to
PFRS (2015-2017 Cycle)

PAS 12 (Amendments) . Income taxes - Tax Consequences of
Dividends

PFRS 23 (Amendments) :  Borrowing costs - Eligibility for
Capitalization

Discussed below are the relevant information about these amended standards:

i. PFRS 9 (Amendment), Financial Instruments -~ Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation. The amendments clarify that prepayment features with negative
compensation attached to financial instruments may still qualify under the “solely
payments of principal and interests” (SPPI) test. As such, the financial assets
containing prepayment features with negative compensation may still be classified
at amortized cost or at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).
The application of this amendment has no material impact on the Association’s
financial statements.

ii. PFRS 16, Leases. The new standard replaced PAS 17, Leases, and its related
interpretation IFRIC 4, Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease,
Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC) 15, Operating Leases - Incentives and SIC
27, Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. For
lessees, it requires an entity to account for leases “on-balance sheet” by recognizing a
“right-of-use” asset and lease liability arising from the contract that is or contains, a
lease.

For lessors, the definitions of the type of lease (i.e., finance and operating leases) and
the supporting indicators of a finance lease are substantially the same with the
provisions under PAS 17. In addition, basic accounting mechanics are also similar
but with some different or more explicit guidance related to variable payments, sub-
leases, lease modifications, the treatment of initial direct costs and lessor disclosures.

The Association has adopted PFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach as
allowed under the transitional provisions of the standard. The adoption of the
standard has resulted in adjustments to the amounts recognized in the financial
statements as at January 1, 2019. Accordingly, comparative information was not
restated.

The new accounting policies of the Association as a lessee are disclosed in the
succeeding pages.
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Discussed below are the relevant information arising from the Association's
adoption of PFRS 16 and how the related accounts are measured and presented on
the Association's financial statements as at January 1, 2019.

a. For contracts in place at the date of initial application, the Association has
elected to apply the definition of a lease from PAS 17 and IFRIC 4 and has not
applied PFRS 16 to arrangements that were previously not identified as leases
under PAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

b.  For leases with a lease term of 12 months and for leases of low-value assets, the
Association has applied the optional exemptions to not recognize right-of-use
assets but to account for the lease expense on a straight-line basis over the
remaining lease term.

The Association has no recognized right-of-use asset and lease liability in 2019 since
the Association’s lease agreement has a term of 12 months and renewable every year.

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments. The interpretation provides
clarification on the determination of taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits, and tax rates when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments. The core principle of the interpretation requires the Association to
consider the probability of the tax treatment being accepted by the taxation
authority. When it is probable that the tax treatment will be accepted, the
determination of the taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits,
and tax rates shall be on the basis of the accepted tax treatment. Otherwise, the
Association has to use the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on
the suwrrounding circumstances, in determining the tax accounts identified
immediately above.

Annual Improvements to PFRS 2015-2017 Cycle. Among the improvements, the
following amendment is relevant to the Association but had no material impact on
the Association’s financial statements as this amendment merely clarify existing
requirements:

e PAS 12 (Amendments), Income taxes - Tax Consequences of Dividends. The
amendments clarify that an entity should recognize the income tax consequence
of dividend payments in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity
according to where the entity originally recognized the transactions that
generated the distributable profits.

e PAS 23 (Amendments), Borrowing costs — Eligibility for Capitalization. The
amendments clarify that any specific borrowing which remains outstanding
after the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended purpose, such
borrowing is treated as part of the entity’s general borrowings when calculating
the capitalization rate.

Effective in 2019 that are not Relevant to the Association

The following amendments to existing standards are mandatorily effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 but are not relevant to the Association’s

financial statements:
PAS 19 (Amendments) . Employee Benefits - Plan Amendment,
; Curtailment or Settlement
PAS 28 (Amendments) :  Investment in Associates and Joint

Ventures- Long-term Interests in
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Associates and Joint Ventures
Annual Improvements to
PFRS (2015-2017 Cycle)
PFRS 3 : Business Combinations
PFRS 11 ©  Joint Arrangements

. Effective Subsequent to 2019 but not Adopted Early

There are new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to existing standards
effective for annual periods subsequent to 2019 which are adopted by the FRSC.
Management will adopt the following relevant pronouncements in accordance with
their transitional provisions; and, unless otherwise stated, none of these
pronouncements are expected to have significant impact on the Association’s
financial statements:

1 PAS 1 (Amendments), Presentation of Financial Statements and PAS 8 (Amendments),
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors — Definition of
Material (effective from January 1, 2020). The amendments provide a clearer
definition of ‘material' in PAS 1 by including the concept of “obscuring' material
information with immaterial information as part of the new definition and
clarifying the assessment threshold (i.e., misstatement of information is material if it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by primary users, which
consider the characteristic of those users as well as the entity's circumstances). The
definition of material in PAS 8 has been accordingly replaced by a reference to the
new definition in PAS 1. In addition, the amendment has also been made in other
Standards that contain a definition of material or refer to the term 'material' to
ensure consistency.

ii. Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (effective from
January 1, 2020). The revised conceptual framework will be used in standard-setting
decisions with immediate effect. Key changes include (a) increasing the prominence
of stewardship in the objective of financial reporting, (b) reinstating prudence as a
component of neutrality, (c) defining a reporting entity, which may be a legal entity,
or a portion of an entity, (d) revising the definitions of an asset and a liability, (e)
removing the probability threshold for recognition and adding guidance on
derecognition, (f) adding guidance on different measurement basis, and, (g) stating
that profit or loss is the primary performance indicator and that, in principle, income
and expenses in other comprehensive income should be recycled where this
enhances the relevance or faithful representation of the financial statements.

No changes will be made to any of the current accounting standards. However,
entities that rely on the framework in determining their accounting policies for
transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the
accounting standards will need to apply the revised framework from
January 1, 2020. These entities will need to consider whether their accounting
policies are still appropriate under the revised framework
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Financial Instruments

a. Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Association becomes a party to the contractual
terms of the financial instruments. Except for those receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at the transaction price in accordance
with PFRS 15, all financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for
transaction costs (where applicable). For purposes of classifying financial assets, an
instrument is considered as an equity instrument if it is non-derivative and meets the
definition of equity for the issuer in accordance with the criteria of PAS 32, Financial
Instruments: Presentation. All other non-derivative financial instruments are treated as
debt instruments.

Classification, Measurement and Reclassification of Financial Assets

The classification and measurement of financial assets is driven by the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets. The classification and measurement of financial assets are described
below and in the succeeding pages.

1. Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions
are met (and are not designated as FVTPL):

e the asset is held within the business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (“hold to collect”); and,

¢ the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding.

Except for loans and receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component and are measured at the transaction price in accordance with PFRS 15, all
financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus
transaction costs. These are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment in value.

The Association’s financial assets at amortized cost are presented in the statement of
financial position as Cash and cash equivalents, Short-term investments and
investments securities presented at Financial assets at amortized cost in the
statements of financial position.

For purposes of cash flows reporting and presentation, cash and cash equivalents
comprise accounts with original maturities of three months or less, including cash.
These generally include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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No changes will be made to any of the current accounting standards. However, entities
that rely on the framework in determining their accounting policies for transactions,
events or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards
will need to apply the revised framework from January 1, 2020. These entities will need
to consider whether their accounting policies are still appropriate under the revised
framework

Short-term investment includes time deposits with original maturities of more than
three months but less than one year.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial assets except for those that are subsequently
identified as credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets at amortized cost,
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial assets
(after deduction of the loss allowance). The interest earned is recognized in of profit
or loss as part of Finance income.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

The Association accounts for financial assets at FVOCI if the assets meet the
following conditions:

e they are held under a business model whose objective is to hold to collect the
associated cash flows and sell (“hold to collect and sell”); and,

e the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are SPPI on
the principal amount outstanding.

At initial recognition, the Association can make an irrevocable election (on an
instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate equity investments as at FVOCI
however, such designation is not permitted if the equity investment is held by the
Association for trading or as mandatorily required to be classified as FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with no deduction for any disposal
costs. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value, including the foreign
exchange component, are recognized in other comprehensive income, net of any
effects arising from income taxes, and are reported as part of Revaluation reserves
account in equity. When the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in the Revaluation reserves account is not reclassified to profit
or loss but is reclassified directly to Free and unassigned balance account, except for
those debt securities classified as FVOCI wherein cumulative fair value gains or
losses are recycled to profit or loss.:

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial assets except for those that are subsequently
identified as credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial assets (after
deduction of the loss allowance). The interest earned is recognized in profit or loss as
part of Finance income.
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Any dividends earned on holding equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss
as part of Miscellaneous under Other operating income account, when the
Association’s right to receive dividends is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Association, and, the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, unless the dividends clearly
represent recovery of a part of the cost of the investment.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Association’s financial assets designated at
FVOCI is discussed in Note 10.

iti. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than “hold to
collect” or “hold to collect and sell” are categorized at FVTPL. Further, irrespective
of business model, financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not SPPI are
accounted for at FVTPL. Also, equity securities are classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, unless the Association designates an equity investment that is not held for
trading as at FVOCI at initial recognition. The Association’s financial assets at

FVTPL include equity securities which are held for trading purposes or designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognized
in profit or loss as part of Finance income in the statements of profit or loss. The fair
values of these financial assets are determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

Interest earned on these investments is included in the net fair value gains (losses)
on these assets presented as part of Finance Income in the statements of profit or
loss.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Association’s financial assets designated at
FVTPL is discussed in Note 9.

The Association can only reclassify financial assets if the objective of its business model
for managing those financial assets changes. Accordingly, the Association is required to
reclassify financial assets: (i) from amortized cost to FVTPL, if the objective of the
business model changes so that the amortized cost criteria are no longer met; and, (ii)
from FVTPL to amortized cost, if the objective of the business model changes so that the
amortized cost criteria start to be met and the characteristic of the instrument’s
contractual cash flows meet the amortized cost criteria.

A change in the objective of the Association’s business model will take effect only at the
beginning of the next reporting period following the change in the business model.

Impairment of Financial Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Association assesses and recognizes an allowance
for ECL on a forward-looking basis associated with its financial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt instruments measured at FVOCI. Recognition of credit losses is
no longer dependent on the Association’s identification of a credit loss event. Instead,
the Association considers a broader range of information in assessing credit risk and
measuring expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable
and supportable forecasts that affect the collectability of the future cash flows of the
financial assets.
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The Association applies the simplified approach in measuring ECL, which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other receivables and contract assets.
These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the potential for
default at any point during the life of the financial assets. To calculate the ECL, the
Association uses its historical experience, external indicators and forward-looking
information to calculate the ECL using a provision matrix. The Association also assesses
impairment of trade receivables on a collective basis as they possess shared credit risk
characteristics, and have been grouped based on the days past due.

For debt instruments measured at FVOCI and at amortized cost, the allowance for credit
losses is based on the ECL associated with the probability of default of a financial
instrument in the next 12 months, unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since the origination of the financial asset, in such case, a lifetime ECL for a
purchased or originated credit impaired, the allowance for credit losses is based on the
change in the ECL over the life of the asset. The Association recognized a loss allowance
for such losses at each reporting date.

The Association determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
for the financial asset since the initial recognition by comparing the risk of a default
occurring over the expected life of the financial asset between the reporting date and the
date of the initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Association considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that may indicate an actual or expected
deterioration of the credit quality of the financial assets.

The key elements used in the calculation of ECL are as follows:

*  Probability of default - It is an estimate of likelihood of default over a given time
horizon.

* Loss given default - It is an estimate of loss arising in case where a default occurs at a
given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows of a
financial instrument due from a counterparty and those that the Association would
expect to receive, including the realization of any collateral.

* Exposure at default - It represents the gross carrying amount of the financial
instruments subject to the impairment calculation.

The Association recognizes an impairment loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments subjected to impairment assessment with corresponding adjustments to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for debt instruments
measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in Revaluation reserves account, and does not reduce the
carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.
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c. Derecognition of Financial Assets

The financial assets (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
financial assets) are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from
the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to another party. If the Association
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Association recognizes its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Association
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Association continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

d. Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, which include interest-bearing loans and borrowings; and trade and
other payables [except output value-added tax (VAT) and other taxes payable and post-
employment obligation], liability on individual equity value, basic contingent benefit
reserve and claims payable on basic contingent benefit, are recognized when the
Association becomes a party to the contractual agreements of the instrument. All
interest-related charges incurred on a financial liability are recognized as an expense in
profit or loss under the caption Finance costs in profit or loss.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are raised for the support of long-term funding of
operations. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption
and direct issue costs, are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent
that these are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequently
measured at amortized cost, using effective interest method for maturities beyond one
year, less settlement payments.

Liability on individual equity value, basic contingent benefit reserve and claims payable
on basic contingent benefit are recognized as financial liabilities based on the amounts
recommended by an independent actuary.

e. Derecognition of Financial Liabilities -

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss in the
statements of comprehensive income.

f. Items of Income and Expense Related to Financial Assets

All income and expenses, including impairment losses, relating to financial assets that
are recognized in profit or loss are presented as part of Interest income or Interest
expense, Impairment losses, Gain on disposal of financial assets, Dividend income and
Recoveries from accounts written-off (presented as part of Other income) in the profit or
loss.
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Non-compounding interest, dividend income and other cash flows resulting from
holding financial assets are recognized in the profit or loss when earned, regardless of
how the related carrying amount of financial assets is measured.

8. Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount,
considered as a single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the statement of
financial position when the Association currently has legally enforceable right to set off
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The right of set-off must be available at the
end of the reporting period, that is, it is not contingent on future event. It must also be
enforceable in the normal course of business, in the event of default, and in the event of
insolvency or bankruptcy; and must be legally enforceable for both entity and all
counterparties to the financial instruments.

Prepayments

This account pertains to prepayments controlled by the Association as a result of past
events. They are recognized in the financial statements when it is probable that the future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and the asset has a cost or value that can be
measured reliably.

Property and Equipment

Land and building and improvements are measured at acquisition or construction cost less
depreciation for building and improvements. As no finite useful life for land can be
determined, related carrying amount are not depreciated. All other property and equipment
are carried at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major
improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and maintenance are
charged to expense as incurred. When assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, their
cost and related accumulated depreciation and impairment losses are removed from the
accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in income for the period.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Building and improvements 2-30 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2-5 years
Transportation equipment 2-5 years

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The residual values and estimated useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
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An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the statements of comprehensive income
in the year the item is derecognized.

Investment Property

This account includes parcels of land acquired in settlement of loans recorded at the lower
of the total loan exposure or bid price at the same time of foreclosure, which should not be
higher than the fair value of the property less costs to sell. Any excess of the loan balance
over the bid price that is not recoverable from the borrower is included under Other losses
in the statements of comprehensive income. Holding costs subsequent to foreclosure or
acquisition of the properties are charged to operations as incurred.

Other investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. This investment
property is initially recognized at cost, which includes acquisition price plus directly
attributable cost incurred such as legal fees, transfer taxes and other transaction impairment
losses, if any. Investment property is recognized using cost model. Depreciation is
computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 5 years

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Association’s property and equipment and investment property are subject to
impairment testing. All other individual assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, assets are
tested for impairment either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, management
estimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines the
suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data
used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Association’s latest
approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of asset enhancements.
Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect
management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific risk
factors.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the
recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of the impairment loss.
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Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive obligation that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period,
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are
a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time value of money
is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values using a pretax rate
that reflects market assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be
measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial statements. Similarly, possible
inflows of economic benefits to the Association that do not yet meet the recognition criteria
of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the financial
statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the Association can be virtually
certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognized as a separate
asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.

Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Association and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

s Interest - revenue is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the effective
yield on the asset. '

Interest collected in advance (unearned interest income) is amortized to earnings using
the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Association estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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For other income arises in the performance of Association’s services, the Association follows
a 5-step process to determine whether to recognize revenue:

Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

G LN

For Step 1 to be achieved, the following five gating criteria must be present:

i. the parties to the contract have approved the contract either in writing, orally or in
accordance with other customary busiriess practices;

ii. each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred or performed can be
identified;

iii. the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred or performed can be
identified;

iv. the contract has commercial substance (i.e., the risk, timing or amount of the future cash
flows is expected to change as a result of the contract); and,

v. collection of the consideration in exchange of the goods and services is probable.

Revenue is recognized either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Association
satisfies performance obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its
customers.

A performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meets one of the following
criteria, in which case it is satisfied over time:

i. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Association’s performance as the Association performs;

ii. the Association’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced; and,

iii. the Association’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Association and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

The Association recognizes contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of
unsatisfied performance obligations and reports these amounts as other liabilities in the
statement of financial position. Similarly, if the Association satisfies a performance
obligation before it receives the consideration, the Association recognizes either a contract
asset or a receivable in its statement of financial position, depending on whether something
other than the passage of time is required before the consideration is due.

Income that were recognized under the above criteria are discussed as follows:

o General and insurance funds and membership fees - revenue is recognized monthly as they
become due from members. '

e Service charges and fees - revenue is amortized and recognized using the effective interest
rate method over the term of the loan.

o Other contributions - revenue is recognized upon receipt of contribution.

e Miscellaneous - revenue is recognized as they are earned.

PRAXIS FIDES ANNUAL REPORT




15 - AR

Cost and operating expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon utilization of services or
at the date they are incurred.

Employee Benefits

The Association provides short term benefits and post-employment benefits to employees
through a defined benefit plan, as well as various defined contribution plans.

a. Short-term Benefits

Wages, salaries and bonuses are recognized as an expense in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Short term accumulating compensated
absences such as paid annual leave are recognized when services are rendered by
employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences. Short term
non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are recognized when the
absences occur.

b. Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of post-
employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on
one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal obligation for any
benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the Association, even if
plan assets for funding the defined benefit have been acquired. Plan assets may include
assets specially designated to a long-term benefit fund, as well as qualifying insurance
policies. The Association’s defined benefit post-employment plans covers all regular
full-time employees.

The liability recognized in the statements of financial position for defined benefit
pension plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the end of
the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The DBO is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
DBO is determined by discounting the estimated futures cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension liability.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on plan assets
(excluding amount included in net interest) are reflected immediately in the statement of
financial position with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they arise. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period, taking account of any changes in the net defined benefit
liability or asset during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net
interest is reported as part of Finance costs or Finance income account in the statements
of comprehensive income.

Past-service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period of a
plan amendment.
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c¢. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan under which the Association pays fixed contributions into
an independent entity such as Social Security System (SSS), Philhealth and Pag-ibig. The
Association has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions after
payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions recognized in respect of defined
contribution plans are expensed as they fall due. Liabilities and assets may be
recognized if underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are included in current
liabilities or current assets as they are normally of a short-term nature.

d. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Association
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Association recognizes termination
benefits at the earlier of when or can no longer withdraw the offer of such benefits and
when it recognized costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of PAS 37 and it
involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due of more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

Leases
The Association as a lessee accounts for its leases as follows:
Accounting for Leases in Accordance with PFRS 16 (2019)

For any new contracts entered into on or after January 1, 2019, the Association considers
whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a
contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To apply this definition, the Association assesses whether the
contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:

. the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available
to the Association;

. the Association has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within
the defined scope of the contract; and,

. the Association has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the
period of use. The Association assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for
what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

The Association has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
using the practical expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Accounting for Leases in Accordance with PAS 17 (2018)

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is made after the inception of the lease only
if one of the following applies:

a. there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the
arrangement; '

b. a renewal option is exercised or extension granted unless that term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;

c. there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified
asset; or,

d. there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date
when the change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d)
above, and at the date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

The Association has entered into leases on-premises uses for its operations. Leases that do
not transfer to the Association substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased items are treated as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognized as an expense in the statements of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Contingent rental payables are recognized as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

Inicome Taxes

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid at
the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense
in the profit or loss.

Related Party Transactions and Relationship

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the
Association and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the
Association; (b) associates; and, (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in
the voting power of the Association that gives them significant influence over the
Association and close members of the family of any such individual.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance
of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.
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Fund Balance . ‘

Assigned fund balance represents that amount set-aside based on certain percentage from
net profit during the year.

Free and unassigned fund balance includes all current and prior period results as disclosed
in the statements of comprehensive income.

Accumulated other comprehensive loss includes all the accumulated fair value changes in
defined benefit obligation.

Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Association’s
financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the
financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed
when material to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Association’s financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may
ultimately differ from these estimates.

Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Association’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

a. Determination of ECL on Trade and other receivables

The Association uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade and other receivables
and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product
type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

The provision matrix is based on the Association’s historical observed default rates. The
Association’s management intends to regularly calibrate (i.e., on an annual basis) the
matrix to consider the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information
(i.e., forecast economic conditions).

b. Evaluation of Business Model Applied in Managing Financial Instruments

The Association developed business models which reflect how it manages its portfolio
of financial instruments. The Association’s business models need not be assessed at
entity level or as a whole but shall be applied at the level of a portfolio of financial
instruments (ie., group of financial instruments that are managed together by the
Association) and not on an instrument-by-instrument basis (i.e., not based on intention
or specific characteristics of individual financial instrument).
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In determining the classification of a financial instrument under PFRS 9, the Association
evaluates in which business model a financial instrument or a portfolio of financial
instruments belong to taking into consideration the objectives of each business model
established by the Association (e.g., held-for-trading, generating accrual income, direct
matching to a specific liability) as those relate to the Association’s investment and
trading strategies.

Testing the Cash Flows Characteristics of Financial Assets and Continuing Evaluation of the
Business Model

In determining the classification of financial assets, the Association assesses whether the
contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
SPPI on the principal outstanding, with interest representing time value of money and
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding. The assessment as to
whether the cash flows meet the test is made in the currency in which the financial asset
is denominated. Any other contractual term that changes the timing or amount of cash
flows (unless it is a variable interest rate that represents time value of money and credit
risk) does not meet the amortized cost criteria. In cases where the relationship between
the passage of time and the interest rate of the financial instrument may be imperfect,
known as modified time value of money, the Association assesses the modified time
value of money feature to determine whether the financial instrument still meets the
SPPI criterion. The objective of the assessment is to determine how different the
undiscounted contractual cash flows could be from the undiscounted cash flows that
would arise if the time value of money element was not modified (the benchmark cash
flows).

If the resulting difference is significant, the SPPI criterion is not met. In view of this, the
Association considers the effect of the modified time value of money element in each
reporting period and cumulatively over the life of the financial instrument.

In addition, the standard emphasizes that if more than an infrequent sale is made out of
a portfolio of financial assets carried at amortized cost, an entity should assess whether
and how such sales are consistent with the objective of collecting contractual cash flows.
In making this judgment, the Association considers certain circumstances documented
in its business model manual to assess that an increase in the frequency or value of sales
of financial instruments in a particular period is not necessary inconsistent with a held-
to-collect business model if the Association can explain the reasons for those sales and
why those sales do not reflect a change in the Association’s objective for the business
model.

Distinction Between Investment Properties and Owner-managed Properties

The Association determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In
making its judgment, the Association considers whether the property generates cash
flows largely independent of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied
properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the property but also to
other assets used in the production or supply process.
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Determination of Timing of Satisfaction of Performance Obligations

The Association determines that its revenue from services shall be recognized over time.
In making its judgment, the Association considers the timing of receipt and
consumption of benefits provided by the Association to the borrowers or customers.

In determining the best method of measuring the progress of the Association’s
rendering of services, management considers the output method, which uses direct
measurements of the value to the customer of the services transferred to date relative to
the remaining services promised as a basis in recognizing revenues. Such measurements
include results of performance completed to date, time elapsed, and appraisals of
milestones reached or activities already performed.

Determination of Lease Term of Contracts with Renewal and Termination Options

In determining the lease term, management considers all relevant factors and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise a renewal option or not
exercise a termination option. Renewal options and/or periods after termination options
are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended or not
terminated. '

For leases of the premises/offices, the factors that are normally the most relevant are (a)
if there are significant penalties should the Association pre-terminate the contract, and
(b) if any leasehold improvements are expected to have significant remaining value, the
Association is reasonably certain to extend and not to terminate the lease contract.
Otherwise the Association considers other factors including historical lease durations
and the costs and business disruption required to replace the leased asset.

The Association included the renewal period as part of the lease term due to the
significance of these assets to its operations. Some leases have a short, non-cancellable
lease period and there will be a significant negative effect on Association’s operation if a
replacement is not readily available.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised or not exercised or the
Association becomes obliged to exercise or not exercise it. The assessment of reasonable
certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances
occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the Association.

Distinction between Operating and Finance Leases (2018)

The Association has entered into various lease agreements. Critical judgment was
exercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement as either an operating or a
finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure to make the right
judgment will result in either overstatement or understatement of assets and liabilities.

Evaluating Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are discussed in
Note 3 above and disclosures on relevant provisions and contingencies are presented in
Note 23.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty |

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of ‘
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrymg amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year:

a. Estimation of Allowance for ECL

The measurement of the allowance for ECL on financial assets at amortized cost and at
FVOCI is an area that requires the use of significant assumptions about the future
economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and
the resulting losses).

The carrying value of loans and other receivables and the analysis of allowance for
impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 7.

b. Estimation of Impairment of Financial Assets (Financial Assets at Fair Value Trough Profit or
Loss)

The Association reviews its HTM investments and Loans and other receivables
portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Association makes judgments
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from the financial asset or a portfolio of similar
financial assets. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has
been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in a group, or
national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group.

Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio
when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to
reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience. ‘

The total impairment losses on financial assets recognized in profit or loss is presented
in Note 9.

c. Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments where active market quotes are not available. This requires management to
develop estimates and assumptions based on market inputs, using observable data that
market participants would use in pricing the instrument.

Where such data is not observable, management uses its best estimate. Estimated fair
values of financial instruments may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved
in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

Fair value gain of P5,202,837 in 2019 and loss of 3,981,777 in 2018 on financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss was reported in the statements of comprehensive
income (see Note 10).

The fair values of the Association’s financial instruments are disclosed in Note 25.
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Estimation of Useful Lives of Property and Equipment and Investment Property Except Land

The Association estimates the useful lives of property and equipment based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful
lives of property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment and investment property are analyzed
in Note 11 and 12. Based on management’s assessment as at December 31, 2019 and
2018, there is no change in estimated useful lives of those assets during those years.
Actual results, however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by
changes in factors mentioned above.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or
a cash-generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. Estimation uncertainty relates to
assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount
rate. Though management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair
values reflected in the financial statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant
changes in these assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values
and any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the results of
operations. '

Valuation of Post-employment Defined Benefit Obligation

The determination of the Association’s obligation and cost of post-employment is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such
amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 21 and include, among others,
discount rates, expected rate of return on plan assets and expected rate of salary
increases. In accordance with PERS, actual results that differ from the assumptions are
accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the
recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future periods.

The amounts of post-employment benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of the
movements in the estimated present value of post-employment benefit as well as the
significant assumptions used in estimating such obligation are presented
in Note 21.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as at December 31:

2019 2018
Cash in banks P 92452811 P 84,676,555
Short-term placements ; 76,035,277 115,279,517

P 1 088 P 199,956,072
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Cash in banks generally earn interest at rates based on daily banks deposit rates. Short-term
placements are made for varying periods between 30 to 90 days and earn effective annual
interest ranging from 3.00% to 3.50% in 2019 and 1.50% to 5.44% in 2018.

The interest earned on cash in banks and short-term placements amounted to
12,615,353 in 2019 and P889,074 in 2018 and are presented as part of Interest on investment
securities and deposits with banks in the statements of comprehensive income.

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
The short-term investments amounted to P158,412,291 in 2019 and P81,248,155 in 2018. These
investments have a term for more than three months but less than one-year term and bear an

annual effective interest ranging from 3.00% to 4.00% in 2019 and 1.75% to 5.625%
in 2018.

The interest earned on short-term investments amounted to P10,306,004 in 2019 and

P5,408,997 in 2018 and are presented as part of Interest on investment securities and
deposits with banks in the statements of comprehensive income.

LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The details of this account are shown below:

2019 2018
Consumption loans P 350,288,976 P 375,170,011
Accrued income 41,871,623 34,095,300
Accounts receivable 2,482,730 1,928,230
394,643,329 411,193,541
Allowance for impairment losses ( 9,833,543) ( 6,547,206)
P_ 384,809,786 P_ 404646335

In the statements of financial position, these are presented as follows:

2019 2018
Current P 242973384 P 222,805,766
Non-current 141,836,402 181,840,569

4 786 P_404 3

The Association grants loans ranging frém 1,000 to P10,000,000 in 2019 and 2018, with
annual effective interest rates ranging from 5% to 16% in both years. The credit terms on
loans ranging from 3 months to 10 years.

The interest received on loans and other receivables amounted to 37,302,349 in 2019 and
P38,872,048 in 2018 and are presented as Interest on loans in the statements of
comprehensive income.

Accounts receivable pertains to unremitted collections and receivable to borrowers who
reacquired their previously foreclosed properties.
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The Association collects service fees at 3% of loans granted. Service fees amounted to
6,935,069 and P7,477,313 in 2019 and 2018, respectively, and presented as Services charges -
and fees in the statements of comprehensive income.

Past due loans amounted to P39,218,982 in 2019 and P22,515,635 in 2018.

The movements in the allowance for impairment losses in loans receivables are as follows:

2019 2018
Balance at beginning of year P 6547206 P 6,487,884
Impairment losses during the year (see' Note 17) 3,300,000 5,128,721
Reversal ( 13,663) (___5,069,399)
Balance at end of year P___9833543 P 547,206

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances
follows:

_ 2019
Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Gross carrying amounts

as at January 1, 2019 P 352654376 P 15968429 P 6547206 P 375,170,011
New assets originated - 13,417,010 3,286,337 16,703,347
Assets derecognized or prepaid (____41,584,382) - - (___41,584,382)
Gross carrying amounts

as December 31, 2019 P_311069994 P_ 29385439 D__ 9833543 P_350288,976
ECL allowance as at January 1, 2019 P 5,997,826 P 389,629 P 159,751 P 6,547,206
Provision for of credit losses 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000
Reversal ( 13,663) - - ( 13,663)
ECL allowance as at December 31, 2019 P___ 97284163 P 389,629 P 159,751 P___ 9,833,543

2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total

Gross carrying amounts

as at January 1, 2018 P 334508021 P 1398178 P 6,487,884 P 342,394,083
New assets originated 231,145,082 14,570,251 59,322 245,774,655
Assets derecognized or prepaid 212,998,727) - - 212,998,727)
Gross carrying amounts

as December 31, 2018 P_352654376 D 15968420 P___6,547.206 P_ 375170011
ECL allowance as at January 1, 2018

Under PFRS 9 P 6295465 P 34,115 P 158,304 P 6,487,884
Provision for of credit losses 4,771,760 355,514 1,447 5,128,721
Reversal ( 5,069,399) - - ( 5,069,399
ECL allowance as at December 31, 2018 :

under PFRS 9 P___599782 P 389,629 P 159,751 P 6,547,206

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST

This account includes investment securities amounting to 7,956,705 in 2019 and P3,000,000
in 2018. This 349-day and 161-day treasury bills bears interest of 3.50% and 3.30% in 2019. The
interest earned on this financial asset amounted to 936,253 in 2019 and are presented as
part of Interest on investment securities and deposits with banks in the statements of
comprehensive income.
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9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

This account comprises of investment securities as follows:

2019 2018
Mutual funds P 68,405542 P 44,453,200
Equity securities under Investment Management
Agreement (IMA) 61,659,693 40,477,351
Quoted equity securities 56,709,945 40,861,396
Bonds 25,321,802 -
Unit investment trust fund (UITF) - 5,404,384

P_212,096982 P 131,196,331

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of these financial assets at FVTPL is as follows:

2019 2018
Balance at beginning of year ‘ P 131,196,331 P 99,593,135
Additions , 94,028,282 49,083,135
Disposals ( 18330468) (  13,501,230)
Fair value loss (gain) - net 5,202,837 ( 3,978,709)
Balance at end of year P__ 212,096,982 131,196,331

In 2019 and 2018, the Association recognized gain from disposal of financial assets at FVTPL
amounting to P3,235,049 and 2,096,938, respectively. These are presented as Income from
sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the statements of comprehensive
income. )

The acquisition cost and accumulated fair value gain or loss of these financial assets at
FVTPL are presented below:

Accumulated
Acquisition Fair Market Fair Value
Cost Value Gain or Loss
December 31, 2019
Mutual funds P 64,950,000 P 68,405,542 P 3,455,542
Quoted equity securities 84,941,507 56,709,945  ( 28,231,562 )
Equity securities under IMA 60,157,176 61,659,693 1,502,517
Bonds 25,000,000 25,321,802 321,802

P__235048,683 P__ 212096982 (P___ 22951,699)

December 31, 2018

Mutual funds P 45,000,000 P 44,453,200 P 546,800
Quoted equity securities 64,657,699 37,372,963 23,796,303
Equity securities under IMA 42,151,049 40,477,351 1,673,698
UITF 5,000,000 5404384 ( 404,384)
P__156808748 P__131196331 25,612,417
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Quoted equity securities consist of investments in companies listed in the Philippine Stock
Exchange. The fair values of listed equity securities have been determined directly by
reference to published prices in active markets.

Equity securities under Investment Management Agreement (IMA) consists of bonds, note

placements and shares of listed companies managed by several local banks.
The fair values of mutual funds, UITF, and equity securities under IMA have been

determined directly by reference to published prices in active markets.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

This account consists of the following treasury bonds and unquoted securities:

2019 2018
Corporate bonds
10-Year Treasury Bonds P 10,000,000 P 10,000,000
20-Year Treasury Bonds 7,000,000 7,000,000
Government bonds
3-Year Treasury Bonds 10,000,000 10,000,000
Unquoted equity securities . 500,000 500,000

P__ 27,500,000 P__ 27,500,000

Treasury bonds bear interest ranging from 3.25% to 7.25% in 2019 and 2018. These
investments were set aside as guarantee fund reserves in compliance with the Association’s
registration as mutual benefit association.

The interest earned on these investments amounted to 1,392,500 in 2019 and 1,008,375 in
2018 and are presented as part of Interest on investment securities and deposits with banks
in the statements of comprehensive income.

Unquoted equity security consists of investment in a non-stock association.

The fair values of unquoted equity securities are neither readily available nor is there an
alternative basis for deriving a reasonable valuation as of reporting date. Management
believes that no impairment should be recognized with this investment.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation at the beginning and end of 2019
and 2018 are shown below:

Building Furniture
and Transportation Fixtures and
Improvements _Equipment Equipment Land Total
December 31, 2019
Cost or valuation P 12311,779 P 8007621 P 7127099 P 6,182,137 P 33,628,635
Accumulated depreciation ( 6,048,271) (___6,938,298) (___6,524,450) - (_19,511,019)
Net carrying amount P__ 6263508 P 1069323 P__ 602649 P 6182137 P 14117.617
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Building Furniture
and Transportation Fixtures and
Improvements _Equipment Equipment Land Total
December 31, 2018
Cost or valuation P 12311779 P 8007621 P 6,872318 P 6,182,137 P 33,373,855
Accumulated depreciation (. 5629638) (___6315223) (__6,052,747) - (17,997,608)
Net carrying amount P__ 6682141 P 1692398 P __ 819571 P_6,182137 P 15376247
January 1, 2018
Cost or valuation P 12,426,775 P- 3,710,930 P 3,148,700 P 6,182,137 P 25,468,542
Accumulated depreciation ¢ 5323,796) (__1.343,798) 2555184) _ - 9,222,778
Net carrying amount P__7102979 P _2367132 P 593516 P 6182137 P 16245764

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property and equipment at the beginning and
end of 2019 and 2018 is shown below:

Building Furniture
and Transportation Fixtures and
Improvements _Equipment Equipment Land Total
Balance at January 1, 2019, net of

accumulated depreciation P 6682141 P 1692398 P 819571 P 6,182,137 P 15,376,247
Additions - - 254,780 - 254,780
Adjustments - - 1,342 - 1,342
Depreciation charge

for the year (se¢ Note 17) ( 418,633) ( 623,075) ( 473,045) - (__1,514,753)

Balance at December 31, 2019, net
of accumulated depreciation P___6263508 P 1069323 P___602649 P__6182137 P 14117617

Balance at January 1, 2018, net of .
accumulated depreciation P 7102979 P 2367132 P 593,516 P 6,182,137 P 16,245,764

Additions - - 716,277 - 716,277
Depreciation charge
for the year (se¢ Note 17) ( 420,838) ( 674,734)  ( 490,222) - (__1,585,794)

Balance at December 31, 2018, net
of accumulated depreciation P 668141 P 1692398 P__ 819571 P_ 6182137 P _15.376247

As at December 31, 2019, and 2018, the management believes that there is no indication of
impairment and that the carrying value of the property and equipment can be recovered
through use in operations.

In addition, there were no property and equipment pledge as security or collateral for
liabilities for both years.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Association’s investment property pertains to the portion of the land and land
improvements held for sale and lease. These also include real and other properties acquired
in satisfaction of unsettled debts. The Association currently holds these acquired assets for
purposes of capital appreciation and continues to value its properties using the cost model.
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The gross carrying amounts and the accumulated depreciation of investment property are
shown below:

Land
Land Improvements Total
December 31, 2019
Cost P 86,650,495 P 265547 P 86,916,042
Accumulated depreciation - ( 68,100)  ( 68,100)
Net carrying amount P__86,650,495 P 197,447 P 86,847,942
December 31, 2018
j Cost P 90,770,300 P 341,782 P 91,112,082
| Accumulated depreciation - ( 54,480) ( 54,480)
|
|
Net carrying amount P_ 90,770,300 P 287,302 P_ 91,057,602
January 1, 2018
Cost P 92,749,953 P 341,782 P 93,091,735
i Accumulated depreciation - ( 54,480) ( 54,480)
Net carrying amount P_ 92,7499 P 287,302 P_ 93,037,255

The reconciliations of the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2019 and 2018, of
investment property, are shown below:

Land
Land Improvements Total

Balance at January 1, 2019,

net of accumulated depreciation P 90,770,300 P 287,302 P 91,057,602

Adjustments ( 2773,119) - ( 2773,119)

Disposal ( 1,346,686) ( 76,235)  (  1,422,921)

Depreciation charge for the year - ( 13,620)  ( 13,620)
Balance at December 31, 2019,

net of accumulated depreciation P_ 86,650,495 P___197.447 P 86,847,942
Balance at January 1, 2018, :

net of accumulated depreciation P 92,749,953 P 287,302 P 93,037,255

Disposal ( 1,543,740) ( - ) ( 1,543,740)

Depreciation charge for the year ( 435,913) - ( 435,913)
Balance at December 31, 2018,

net of accumulated depreciation P_90,770,300 P__ 287,302 P_91,057.602

The Association recognized gain on sale of investment property amounting 2,910,378  in
2019 and P29,102,378 in 2018 and is presented as part of Other income under miscellaneous
in the statements of comprehensive income.

i The Association’s investment property includes real and other properties acquired in
satisfaction of unsettled debts. The Association currently holds these acquired assets for
purposes of capital appreciation and continues to value its properties using the cost model.

The fair value information of the investment property as at December 31, 2019 and 2018
cannot be determined reliably primarily because comparable market transactions were
infrequent and alternative reliable estimates of fair value based on discounted cash flow
projections were not available as at the financial reporting date.
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13.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

This account consists of:

2019 2018
Current:
Accounts payable P 8105270 P 9,844,014
Due to government agencies 526,644 508,508
Accrued expenses 608,978 369,498

240,892 P__ 10,722,020

Non-Current
Advance deposit P 87824 P 42,324

14. LIABILITY ON INDIVIDUAL EQUITY VALUE

This account pertains to legal policy reserve which represents the amount set-up by the
Association to cover future benefit payments to members based on the amounts
recommended by an independent actuary accredited by the Insurance Commission dated
April 29, 2019 and April 27, 2018, respectively.

The movement of liability on individual equity value is presented below:

2019 2018
Balance at beginning of year ' P 677322919 P 601,199,316
Collections from equity participation
during the year 34,901,011 76,123,603
Balance at end of year P_7122 0 DP__677,322,919

15. BASIC CONTINGENT BENEFIT RESERVE
This account represents the amount set-up by the Association as insurance premium
reserves based on 50% of the total insurance collected from the members to cover any

insurance claim by the members.

The account is broken down as follows:

2019 2018
Insurance fund collateral ) P 2,472,106 P 2,335,448
Multiply by 50% 50% 50%
P 1236053 [ ___1167.724
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The movements of this account are as follows:

2019 2018
Balance at beginning of year P 1,167,724 P 982,862
Additional reserves : 68,329 184,862
Balance at end of year P 1236053 P 1167724

CLAIMS PAYABLE ON BASIC CONTINGENT BENEFIT

This represents benefit claims on membership certificates filed or reported to the
Association but not yet paid amounting to P1,890,000 and P1,730,000 as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

EXPENSES AND OTHER INCOME

Expenses

This account is consists of the following:

2019 2018

Salaries, wages and employees

benefits (see Note 21) P 16,079,722 P 15,278,969
Insurance claims 8,515,000 8,455,000
Transportation and travel 5,366,413 3,685,846
Impairment losses (see Note 7) 3,300,000 5,128,721
Meetings and conferences 2,428,996 1,482,961
Depreciation (see Notes 11 and 12) ’ 1,528,373 1,585,794
Administrative expenses 1,306,448 1,241,771
Stationery and office supplies 1,172,809 1,324,692
Utilities 607,193 607,378
Taxes and licenses (see Note 30) 505,251 521,308
Communication 270,006 272,723
Professional fees 167,000 195,486
Repairs and maintenance 139,417 243,080
Marketing expense : 114,036 -
Commission 108,059 93,994
Contractors fees 105,525 143,183
Miscellaneous 1,161,164 1,237,699

P__42875412 P__ 41498605

These expenses are classified in the statements of comprehensive income as follows:

2019 2018
Operating expenses P 34360412 P 33,043,605
Benefit expenses 8,515,000 8,455,000

P_ 42875412 P 41498605
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Other Income

This account consists of the following:

2019 2018
Gain on sale of investment property P 2576617 P -
Rental income (see Note 23) ’ 2,039,652 1,975,508
Penalty income 743,656 648,568
Miscellaneous 3,680,900 4,136,031

P 9,040,825 P 6,760,107

MEMBERS’ CONTRIBUTIONS

The Association collects monthly contributions from members ranging from P100 to P20,000
depending on the mode of payments and insurance cover which forms part of general fund
and insurance fund. The general fund amounted to P15,170,110 and P13,602,734 in 2019 and
2018, respectively, while insurance fund amounted to P28,995,867 and P25,631,692 in 2019
and 2018, respectively. These funds were presented in the statements of comprehensive
income.

Members can only withdraw the contributed equity upon termination of membership in the
Association. A portion of members’ equity is transferred to general fund when members fail
to remit their monthly loan contributions. Members whose equity is less than the members’
outstanding loan balance are reclassified as non-members. Total contributions amounted to
145,361,041 and P166,717,862 in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Membership fees are recorded as revenues and are shown as Membership fees in the
statements of comprehensive income. Membership fees amounted to P797,500 and
P1,194,300 in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

As at December 31, 2019, and 2018, the Association has a total of 109,414 and 148,980
members, respectively.

FUND BALANCE

Assigned Fund Balance

This account is composed of the following:

2019 2018
Guaranty fund P 38,000,000 P 38,000,000
Funds assigned for members’ benefits 2,000,000 2,000,000
P__40,000000 P 0,000

The fund assigned for guaranty fund pertéins to the portion of the fund balance set aside for
guaranty fund.
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Fund assigned for members’ benefits were assigned for the following accounts:

Funds for incremental benefit for individual equity value P 500,000
Funds assigned for education and training 500,000
Funds assigned for other member’s benefit 500,000

Funds assigned for community development 500,000

22,000,000

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

This account pertains to loss on remeasurements of retirement benefit obligation in 2018.
Movement of this account is as follow:

Remeasurements
Revaluation of AFS of Retirement
Financial Assets benefit obligation Total
December 31, 2019 .
Balance at beginning of year P - (i 7,147,837) (P 7,147,837)
unassigned fund balance ( 7.817214) ( 7,817,214)
Balance at end of year B - (14 14,965,051) (P 14,965,051)
December 31, 2018
Balance at beginning of year P 15,413,312) (P 7,147,837) (P 22,561,149)
Effect of adoption of PFRS 9
Transfer to free and
unassigned fund balance __15413.312 - 15,413,312
Balance at end of year L - ® 7147.837) (B 7.147.837)
January 1, 2018
Balance at beginning of year P 14,245,340) (P 6,207,174) (P 20,452,514 )
Fair value loss on
disposal during the year 2,814,623 - 2,814,623
Revaluation during the year ( 3,982595) ( 940,663) 4,923,258
Balance at end of year (P__15413.312) (& 7,147.837) (B 22,561,149)

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Association’s related parties include the Association’s employees, directors, officers,
stockholders and related interest (DOSRI) and key management personnel.

The summary of the Association’s transactions and outstanding balances with the related
parties follows:

2019 2018
Amount of Outstanding Amount of Outstanding Terms and
Transactions Balance Transactions Balance Condition
DOSRI
Loans and interest P___ 5031984 P 5516306 D ___ 2544948 P 484,322  Interest bearing
ranging 5% to
16% payable
in 3 years,
unsecured, no
impairment loss
Key management personnel
Compensation P__ 5423978 P - P___5387040 P 2
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Loans and Receivables with Related Parties

In the ordinary course of business, the Association has loans and other transactions with its
members, including officers and employees of the Association (hereinafter referred to as
related parties). Under the Association’s policy, these loans and other transactions are made

substantially on the same terms as with other members.

The movement of these loans to related parties is presented below:

2019 2018
Balance at beginning of year r 484,322 P 3,029,270
Releases during the year 5,031,984 -
Collections during the year - ( 2,544,948)
Balance at end of year P___ 5516306 D 484,322

Key Management Compensation
The compensation of key management is broken down as follows:

2019 2018

Salaries and wages P 5423978 P 5,387,040
Retirement benefits . . -

423978 D 7,04

Key management includes general manager and higher positions.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Salaries and Employee Benefit Expense

Expenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits are presented below:

2019 2018
Salaries and wages P 10,091,653 P 8,629,166
Employees welfare and benefits 5,190,327 4,569,978
Social security costs 759,716 628,484
Retirement costs ) ' 38,026 1,451,341

P__16079,722 P __15.278.969
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Retirement Benefit Obligation

a. Characteristics of the Retirement Benefit Obligation

The Association does not have yet a tax-qualified, non-contributory retirement plan as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018.

The normal retirement age is 60 with a minimum of 5 years of credited service. The plan
also provides for an early retirement at age 50 with a minimum of 5 years of credited
service and late retirement after age 60, both subject to the approval of the Association’s
BOD. Normal retirement benefit is an amount equivalent to 150% of the final monthly
covered compensation (average monthly basic salary during the last 12 months of
credited service) for every year of credited service.

a. Explanation of Amounts Presented in the Financial Statements

Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the retirement benefit costs and the
amount of contributions. All amounts presented in 2018 are based on the actuarial
valuation report obtained from an independent actuary on February 3, 2020. As at
December 31, 2019, actuarial valuation report is not available and there were no material
changes on the last year’s assumptions used by the management.

The amounts of retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statements of financial
position are as follows:

2019 2018
Present value of the obligation P 27795397 P 19,897,223
Fair value of plan assets (__ 14,764,677) (__ 13,270,102)
Retirement benefit obligation 13,030,719 DP___ 6,627,121

The movements in the present value of the retirement benefit obligation recognized in
the books are as follows:

2019 2018
Balance at beginning of year P 19,897,221 P 18,445,882
Current service cost ’ 80,962 1,213,302
Interest cost - 238,037
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial loss 7,817,214 -
Balance at end of year P 27795397 P__19.897,221

The movements in the fair value of plan assets are presented below:

2019 2018
Balance at beginning of year P 13,270,102 P 11,818,761
Contributions 1,451,641 1,451,341
Actual return 42,934 -

Benefits paid 2 B

Balance at end of year
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The composition of the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting period by
category and risk characteristics is shown below:

2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents P 12,774553 P 11,279,978
Retirement loan to employees ‘ 1,990,124 1,990,124

P 14,764,677 P__13,270102

The fair values of the above equity and debt securities are determined based on the
quoted market prices in active markets (classified as Level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy).

Plan assets do not compromise any of the Association’s own financial instruments or
any of its assets occupied and/or used in its operations.

The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other comprehensive
income in respect of the retirement benefit obligation are as follows:

2019 2018
Reported in profit or loss:
Current service costs ; P 80962 P___ 1,451,341
Reported in other comprehensive income-
Actuarial loss P___ 6899594 (P - )

Current service and interest cost is allocated and presented as part of operating expenses
in the statement of profit or loss.

In determining the amounts of the retirement benefit obligation, the following
significant actuarial assumptions were used:

2019 2018
Discount rates 5.48% 5.44%
Expected rate of salary increases 7% 7%

Assumptions regarding mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.
The average age of the employees is 34.41 years in 2019 and 2018, while the average
years of service is 7.38 in 2019 and 2018. These assumptions were developed by
management with the assistance of an independent actuary. Discount factors are
determined close to the end of each reporting period by reference to the interest rates of
a zero coupon government bonds with terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the retirement benefit obligation. Other assumptions are based on current actuarial
benchmarks and management’s historical experience.
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b.  Risks Associated with the Retirement Plan i

The plan exposes the Association to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate
risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

i. Interest Risk

The present value of the retirement benefit obligation is calculated using a discount ‘
rate determined by reference to market yields of government bonds. Generally, a
decrease in the interest rate of a reference government bonds will increase the
plan obligation.

ii. Longevity and Salary Risks

The present value of the retirement benefit obligation is calculated by reference to
the best estimate of the mortality of the plan participants during their employment
and to their future salaries. Consequently, increases in the life expectancy and salary
of the plan participants will result in an increase in the plan obligation.

c.  Other Information

The information on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant actuarial assumptions,
asset-liability matching strategy, and the timing and uncertainty of future cash flows
related to the retirement plan are described below:

Sensitivity Analysis

Each sensitivity analysis on the significant actuarial assumptions was prepared by
remeasuring the retirement benefit obligation at the actuarial valuation report date after
first adjusting one of the current assumptions according to the applicable sensitivity
increment or decrement, based on changes in the relevant assumption that were
reasonably possible at the valuation date, while all other assumptions remained
unchanged. The sensitivities were expressed as the corresponding change in the
retirement benefit obligation. '

The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant actuarial
assumptions used in the determination of the retirement benefit obligation as at
December 31, 2019:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption
December 31, 2019
Discount rate 1% P 4968270 P -
Salary increase rate 1% 45,38,124 -
Withdrawal rate 10% - 263,727

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all
other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of
the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability
recognized within the statements of financial position.
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TAX EXPENSE

The components of tax expense as reported in the statements of comprehensive revenues are
presented below:

2019 2018
Regular corporate income tax P 611,895 P 592,652
Final tax at 20% ) 3,048,207 1,403,353

As mentioned in Note 1, the Association is exempt from the payment of income tax under
Section 30c of the National Internal Revenue Code. However, the Association’s income from
rental is subjected to regular income tax of 30%.

In 2013, the Association donated computer equipment to Alexis G. Santos National High
School, Masagana Public High School and Lolomboy National High School amounting to
P164,350. Likewise, the Association donated computer equipment of P147,045 to San Gabriel
Elementary School in 2012, science equipment package of P73,550 in 2011 to Turo
Elementary School located in Bocaue, Bulacan and P80,000 in 2010 to Sta. Maria Elementary
School located in Poblacion, Sta. Maria, Bulacan. Under the Memorandum of Agreement
between the Association and Department of Education, the Association entitles to tax
incentives equivalent to the amount donated plus an additional 50% of the amount donated
subject to approval by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) pursuant to Revenue
Regulations No. 10-2003.

On June 30, 2014, the Association received an exception from the BIR for the Adopt a School
Program in favor of DepEd Turo Elementary School and Sta. Maria Elementary School. The
said exemption entitles the Association to a full deductibility of donation and entitlement to
a 50% additional deduction. The donation also exempts the Association from paying donors
tax pursuant to R.A. 8525.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The following are the significant commitments and contingencies involving the Association:
Operating Lease - Association as Lessor

The Association is a lessor on various offices with terms ranging from one to ten years, with

renewal options, and includes annual escalation rates of 10%. The future minimum lease
payments receivable under these leases as at December 31 are as follows:

2019 2018
Within one year P 1847354 P 999,492
After one year but not more than five years 717,277 -
Due more than five years 175,000 -
P 2739631 DI 999,492

Rental income recognized from these leases amounted to P2,039,652 in 2019 and P1,975,508
in 2018 and presented as part of Others under Revenues account in the statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 17).
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Others

In the normal course of business, the Association makes various commitments and incurs
certain contingent liabilities that are not given recognition in the Association’s financial
statements. Management believes that losses, if any, that may arise from these commitments
and contingencies will not have a material effect on the Association’s financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Association is exposed to a variety of financial risks in relation to financial instruments.
The  Association's  financial  assets and  liabilities by  category  are
summarized in Note 24. The main types of risks are market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The Association’s risk management is coordinated with the Board of Trustees, and focuses
on actively securing the Association’s short- to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the
exposure to financial markets. Long-term financial investments are managed to generate
lasting returns.

The Association does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes
nor does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Association is
exposed to are described below.

Market Risk

The Association is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and
specifically to currency risk, interest rate risk and certain other price risks which result from
both its operating and investing activities.

a. Foreign Currency Sensitivity

The Association has no significant exposure to foreign currency risks as most
transactions are denominated in Philippine peso, its functional currency.

b. Interest Rate Sensitivity

The Association’s policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-
term financing. The Association is exposed only to changes in market interest rates
through its cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and Financial assets at
amortized cost as there are no existing bank borrowings. All other financial assets (such
as loans and other receivables) and financial liabilities (such as accounts payable and
other liabilities) have fixed interest rates.

Interest income would have either increased or decreased by P225,589 in 2019 and
P102,909 in 2018 assuming reasonably possible change in interest rates of +/-.82% for
regular savings and +/-1.49% for time deposit account in 2019 and 2018, with effect from
the beginning of the year. These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions. The calculations are based on the
Association’s cash and cash equivalents held at December 31, 2019 and 2018. All other
variables are held constant.
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c.  Other Price Risk Sensitivity

through profit or loss (AFS financial assets in 2017). It manages its risk arising from
changes in market price by monitoring the changes in the market price of the ‘
investments. For these securities, an average volatility of 23% has been observed in both i
years. If quoted price for these securities increased or decreased by that amount, profit
before tax would have changed by P744,061 in 2019 and P482,296 in 2018.

|

The Association’s market price risk arises from its investments carried at fair value )
|

|

These investments are considered long-term strategic investments. No specific hedging
activities are undertaken in relation to these investments. The investments are
continuously monitored and voting rights arising from these equity investments are
utilized in the Association’s favor.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Association.
The Association is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments, for example by
granting loans and receivables to borrowers, placing deposits and investment in bonds.

An analysis of the maximum exposure to credit risk, net of allowance for credit and
impairment losses, to credit risk exposures before taking into account any collateral held or
other credit enhancements for the components of the statements of financial position is
shown below:

2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents P 168,488,088 P 199,956,072
Short-term investments 158,412,291 81,248,155
Loans and other receivables 384,809,786 404,646,335
Financial assets at Amortized cost ) 7,956,705 3,000,000
Financial assets at FVTPL 212,096,983 131,196,331
Financial assets at FVOCI 27,500,000 27,500,000

P_ 959,263,853 D 847,546,893

The following tables show the credit quality of financial assets by class (gross of allowance)
of the Association:

2019

Neither Past Due Nor Impaired Past Due
High Standard Substantard But Not
Grade Grade Grade Impaired Impaired Total
Cash and
cash equivalents P 168,488,088 P - P - P - P - P 168,488,088
Short-term investments 158,412,291 - - - - 158,412,291
Financial assets at
amortized cost 7,956,705 - - - - 7,956,705
Financial assets at FVTPL 212,096,983 - - - - 212,096,983
Financial assets at FVOCI 27,500,000 - - - - 27,500,000
Loans and receivables:
Consumption loans - 311,069,994 - 29,385,439 9,833,543 350,288,976
Accrued income - 41,871,623 - - - 41,871,623
Accounts receivable - 2,482,730 - - - 2,482,730

D574454067 P355424.347 P__- P 29385439 P__ 9833543 [P969.097.396
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2018
Neither Past Due Nor Impaired Past Due
High Standard Substantard  But Not
Grade Grade Grade Impaired Impaired Total
Cash and
cash equivalents P 199,956,072 P - P - P - P - P 199,956,072
Short-term investments 81,248,155 - - - - 81,248,155
Financial asset at
Amortized cost 3,000,000 3,000,000
Financial assets at FVTPL 131,196,331 - 2 - - - 131,196,331
Financial assets at FVOCI 27,500,000 27,500,000
Loans and receivables:
Consumption loans - 352,654,376 - 15,968,429 6,547,206 375,170,011
Accrued interest -
Accrued income - 34,095,300 - - - 34,095,300
Accounts receivable - 1,928,230 - - - . 1,928230
P442.900558 P388G72.906 D - 15968420 P

The succeeding tables show the aging analysis of past due loans and other receivables but not yet
impaired. Under PERS, a financial asset is past due when the counterparty has failed to make a
payment when contractually due.

2019
Less than 31to 61 to 91 to Over
30 days 60 days 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
Loans and receivables:
Consumption P_5291753 P_3699728 P__ 73681 P 3519884 P 16800393 D__ 29385439
2018
Less than 31to " 6lto 91 to Over
30 days 60 days 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
Loans and receivables:
Consumption P_4661674 P 2278112 P __ 181372 P 31035 P___ 881623 P __ 15968429

The Association’s management considers the net amount of the above financial assets that
are not impaired or past due for each reporting dates are of good credit quality. The bases in
grading the Association’s financial assets are as follows:

1. High Grade

These are financial assets which have a high probability of collection. The counterparty
has the apparent ability to satisfy its obligation and the security is readily enforceable.

2. Standard Grade

These are receivables where collections are probable due to the reputation and the
financial ability of the counterparty to pay but with the experience of default.

3. Substandard Grade

These are receivables where the counterparty has the experience of default and
probability of turning past due in the near future and/or are already past due.

Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk is generally defined as the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital

arising from the Association’s inability to meet its obligations when they fall due without
incurring unacceptable losses or costs.
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The Association’s Management Committee is responsible for the overall management and
oversight of the Association’s liquidity profile, while the day to day management of
liquidity is assumed by the Finance Department. A cash flow mismatch analysis is used to
measure the Association’s liquidity. A maturity ladder is constructed to determine the
cumulative net excess or deficit of funds at appropriate time bands. Net cumulative outflow

limits have been put in place to ensure that the Association’s funding requirements are not
strained.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Association’s financial instruments:

2019
Less than 3tol12 Over
On Demand 3 Months Months 1 Year Total
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash
equivalents P 92,452,811 P 76035277 P - P - P 168,488,088
Short-term investments - - 158,412,291 - 158,412,291
Financial assets at
Amortized cost - - 7,956,705 - 7,956,705
Financial assets at FVTPL 212,096,983 - - - 212,096,983
Financial assets at FVOCI - - - 27,500,000 27,500,000
Loans and
Receivables - gross 213,799,809 4,003,938 18,502,740 158,336,842 394 643,329
518,349,603 80,039,215 184,871,736 185,836,842 964,097,396
Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable
and other liabilities 5,480,957 - - 18,898,983 24,379,940
Liability on individual
equity value 712,223,930 - - - 712,223,930
Claims payable on basic ’
contingent benefit 1,890,000 - - - 1,890,000
Basic contingent
benefit reserve 1,236,053 - - - 1,236,053
720,830,940 - - 18,226,028 739,056,968
Cumulative gap (P202,481,337) P_80039,215 [ 184,871,736 D_166937,850 P __225040,428
2018
Less than 3to012 Over
_OnDemand ~__3Months ~ __Months ~ ___1Year ~ __ Total
Financial Assets: ’
Cash and cash
equivalents P 84,676,555 P 115279517 P - P - P 199,956,072
Short-term investments - - 81,248,155 - 81,248,155
Financial assets at
Amortized cost 3,000,000 3,000,000
Financial assets at FVTPL 131,196,331 - - - 131,196,331
Financial assets at FVOCI - - - 27,500,000 27,500,000
Loans and
Receivables-gross - 220505701 ___ 8847271 __ 181,840,569 411,193,541

215,872,886 335,785,218 93,095,426 209,340,569 854,094,099
Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable

and other liabilities 10,170,188 - - 42,324 10,213,512
Liability on individual

equity value 677,322,919 - - - 677,322,919
Claims payable on basic

contingent benefit 1,730,000 - - - 1,730,000
Basic contingent

benefit reserve 1,167,724 - - - 1,167,724

690,391,831 - - 42324 690434155

Cumulative gap (P474518,945) P_335785218 P_93.095426 P 209296245 PE_163.650.014
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To ensure that the Association maintains a prudent and management level of cumulative
negative gap, the Association maintains a pool of highly liquid assets in the form of short-

term investments. Further, the Association has pending credit lines with the banks in the
event of funding its operations.

CATEGORIES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

a. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following tables set forth the carrying values and estimated fair values of financial
assets and liabilities, by category and by class, recognized as at December 31:

2019 2018
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P 168,488,088 P 168,488,088 P 199,956,072 P 199,955,072

Short-term investments 158,412,291 158,412,291 81,248,155 81,248,155
Financial assets at

amortized cost 7,956,705 7,956,705 3,000,000 3,000,000
Loans and other receivables 394,643,329 384,809,786 411,193,541 404,646,335
Financial assets at FVOCI 27,500,000 27,500,000 27,500,000 27,500,000
Financial assets at FVTPL 212,096,983 212,096,983 131,696,331 131,696,331

E__969097.396 PE__959263853 P__ 854504000 P__ 848,046,893

Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and other

liabilities r 10,692,072 P 10,692,072 P 10,213,512 P 10,213,512
Liability on individual ’

equity value 712,223,930 712,223,930 677,322,919 677,322,919
Claims payable on basic

contingent benefit 1,890,000 1,890,000 1,730,000 1,730,000
Basic contingent benefit

reserve 1,236,053 1,236,053 1,167,724 1,167,724

P__ 726042055 P___726042055 P ___690434,155 P__ 690,434,155

The methods and assumptions used by the Association in estimating the fair value of the
financial instruments are as follows:

L Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments

The carrying amounts approximate fair values given the short-term nature of
the instruments.

il Financial assets at FVTPL

For publicly traded equity securities, fair values are based on quoted prices
published in markets. For unquoted equity securities, fair value could not be
reliably determined due to the unpredictable timing of future cash flows and the
lack of suitable methods of arriving at a reliable fair value. These are carried at
original cost less allowance for impairment loss.
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1. Financial assets at FVOCI, Financial assets at amiortized cost and Loans and other
receivables

Financial assets at FVOCI, financial assets at amortized cost and loans and other
receivables are net of impairment losses. The estimated fair value of these financial
assets represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expected to
be received. Long term interest-bearing loans are periodically repriced at interest
rates equivalent to the current market rates, to determine fair value.

iv.  Accounts payable and other linbilities, Liability on individual equity value, and Basic
contingent benefit reserve

These liabilities are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amounts to which they are to be paid. Fair value of these short-term
liabilities approximates their carrying values.

b. Fair Value Hierarchy

The Association uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair
value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

* Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

* Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value that are not based on observable market data.

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on
the lowest level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

There have been no significant transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 in the reporting
periods.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, financial assets at FVTPL are the only financial assets
(nil for liabilities) measured at fair value.

The financial asset values are determined at fair value hierarchy as follows:

2019 2018
Level 1 P 538,997,364 P 412,900,558
Level 2 35,456,705 30,500,000
Level 3 384,809,786 404,646,335

P_959.263853 P 848,046,893

All financial liabilities are categorized as Level 3.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Associations’ capital management objectives are to ensure the Association’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to provide an adequate return to members by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Association sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure,
i.e. equity and financial liabilities. The Association manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Association
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to members or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Association monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented
on the face of the statements of financial position. Capital for the reporting periods under
review is summarized as follows:

2019 2018
Total liabilities P 737839924 P 697,708,260
Total fund balance ) 324,207,767 256,956,319
Debt-to-fund ratio 3.28:1.00 2.72:1.00

NON-ADMITTED ASSETS

The estimated amounts of non-admitted assets as defined in the Section 197 of the Insurance
Code and still subject to examination by the IC which are included in the accompanying
statements of financial position follow:

2019 2018
Accounts receivable P 2482731 P 2,242,413
Prepayments 1,818,280 683,837
Investment property 41,533,371 33,000,387
Property and equipment 13,969,390 2,511,970

P__59803772 P__38438,607

OTHER INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION

Republic Act (RA) No. 11232, An Act Providing for the Revised Corporation Code of the
Philippines (the Revised Corporation Code) took effect on March 8, 2019. The new
provisions of the Revised Corporation Code or any amendments thereof have no significant
impact to the Association’s financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On June 11, 2020, the Association’s financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2019 were authorized for issue.

PRAXIS FIDES ANNUAL REPORT
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The 2019 Novel Coronavirus infection (‘coronavirus’) or ‘COVID-19’ outbreak poses a
serious public health threat. The emergence and spread of COVID-19 in first quarter of 2020
has affected businesses and economic activities in China and other countries around the
world including the Philippines. The situation as of December 31, 2019 was that a limited
number of cases of an unknown virus had been reported to the World Health Organization
(WHO). There was no explicit evidence of human-to-human transmission at that date. Its
announcement of coronavirus as a global health emergency was not made until
January 31, 2020 (following which national governments took action). In addition,
significant measures taken by the Philippine government and by private sector
organizations did not take place until early 2020. On March 8, 2020, the Philippine
governument placed the entire Philippines under state of public health emergency because of
the COVID-19 threat that is looming in the nation.

On March 12, 2020, the Philippine government announced "community quarantine” on
Metro Manila starting at 12 midnight on March 15 up to April 14 that will cover 16 cities and
one municipality. During the second day of the implementation of the Metro Manila
community quarantine, on March 16, the Philippine government declared a Luzon-wide
"enhanced community quarantine" that aims to further combat the effect of the continuing
and increasing spread of COVID-19.

On April 7, 2020, the Philippine government extended the enhanced community quarantine
over the entire Luzon until midnight of April 30, 2020.

On April 24, 2020, the Philippine government extended the enhanced community
quarantine in high- risk geographic areas, including all provinces, highly urbanized cities
(HUGs), independent component cities (ICCs), component cities (CCs) and municipalities
situated therein from May 1 to May 15, 2020:

a. National Capital Region,

b. Region III (Central Luzon, except Aurora Province;
c. Region IV-A (CALABARZON);

d. Benguet Province;

e. Pangasinan Province;

f. Iloilo Province;

g. Cebu Province;

h. Bacolod City;

i. Davao City.

For the same period, a “general community quarantine” (GCQ) is hereby imposed in all
other areas of Luzon, Visayas, and Mindanao.

Further, on May 12, 2020, the government announced that only Metro Manila and Laguna
(as well as Cebu City) would be under modified ECQ or MECQ from May 16 to May 31,
2020 because these areas are categorized as high-risk while moderate risk places are going to
be under GCQ. Originally, low-risk areas would neither be under ECQ nor GCQ but it was
later clarified that low-risk areas would be under modified GCQ. On May 15, 2020, a
resolution by the IATF-EID declared additional areas in Luzon under MECQ from May 16
to May 31, 2020 namely Bataan, Bulacan, Nueva Ecija, Pampanga including Angeles City
and Zambales.

PRAXIS FIDES ANNUAL REPORT
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Measures to prevent transmission of the virus include limiting the movement of people,
restricting flights and other travel, temporarily closing businesses and schools, and
cancelling events. This will have an immediate impact on businesses such as tourism,
transport, retail and entertainment. It will also begin to affect supply chains and the
production of goods throughout the world and lower economic activity is likely to result in
reduced demand for many goods and services. Financial services entities such as banks that
lend to affected entities, insurers that provide protection to affected individuals and
businesses, and funds or other investors that invest in affected entities are also likely to be
affected. Not only in the Philippines, it has also interrupted the movement of people and
goods throughout the world, and many levels of government are instituting restrictions on
individuals and businesses.

Based on the management’s assumptions, the implications, including the indirect effects
from lower economic activity, will not affect the Association’s ability to continue as a going
concern. However, the current and potential effects of the COVID-19 outbreak are difficult
to assess and predict. Coronavirus may affect entities in nearly every sector, due to the
following impacts:

s Reduced consumer demand for goods and services due to lost income and/or
restrictions on consumers’ ability to move freely;

. Lack of investment in capital improvements and construction reducing demand for
many goods and services;

: Disruption of global supplies chains due to restrictions placed on the movement of
people and goods.

The Association’s management believes that the actual and potential impacts of COVID-19
have no significant impact in its financial statements in 2020.

This pandemic has led to widespread economic uncertainty and volatility in financial
markets. The measures taken across the globe to try to slow the spread of COVID-19 are
impacting both the supply and demand for many goods and services. Although fiscal and
monetary policy measures are also being implemented to prop up the economy, many still
believe there is a possibility of a global recession.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF
INTERNAL REVENUE

Presented below is the supplementary information which is required by the
Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) under its existing revenue regulations to be disclosed as
part of the notes to financial statements. This supplementary information is not a required
disclosure under PFRS.

The information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year
required under RR 15-2010 are as follows:

a. Output Value-Added Tax (VAT)

The Association has no output VAT for the year 2019.

PRAXIS FIDES ANNUAL REPORT
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Input VAT '

Input VAT arising from various purchases were directly charged by the Association as
cost and expense.

Taxes on Importation

The Association has no tax on importation since it does not have any transactions which
are subject to importation tax.

Excise Tax

The Association does not have excise tax in any of the year presented since it does not
have any transactions which are subject to excise tax.

Documentary Stamps Tax
The Association did not pay nor incur documentary stamp tax during the year.
Taxes and Licenses

The details of taxes and licenses account are broken down as follows:

Real property tax P 151,619
Percentage taxes : 62,726
Municipal license and permits 37,634
Annual registration fee -
Others 253,272
505251
Withholding Taxes

The details of total withholding taxes for the year ended December 31, 2019 are
shown below:

Compensation and employee benefits P 380,186
Expanded 86,864
D 467050

Deficiency Tax Assessment and Tax Case

As at December 31, 2019, the Association neither has any deficiency tax assessment with
the BIR nor does it has tax case outstanding or pending in courts or bodies outside the
BIR in any of the open years.
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PRAXIS FIDES MBAI CONTACT INFORMATION

OFFICE HOURS: 2:00 AM - 5:00 PM
NO NOON BREAK MONDAYS - FRIDAYS
Company Website: www.praxisfides.webs.com
Email Address: praxisfides@gmail.com

MAIN OFFICE
#35 PaseodelCongreso, Catmon, Malolos City, Bulacan
Tel No: (044) 791-3558 / (044) 662-4047
Cel. Nos. 0922 803 2979 / 0917 504 6222

Investor Relation Officer: Melody T. Gaddi
Cel. No. 0917 504 6222 / 044 662-4019 Email add:
pfmgaddi@gmail.com

BALIUAG BRANCH
2ND FLOOR PLM BLG.,BagongNayon, Baliuag, Bulacan
Tel No: (044) 8962787 / Cel. No.0917 515 2877

BUSTOS BRANCH
Poblacion, Bustos, Bulacan
Tel No: (044) 234 7294 / Cel. No. 0917 659 9536

PANDI BRANCH
Bunsuran 3rd, Pandi, Bulacan
Tel No: (044) 7693826 / Cel. No. 0975 205 3511

STA. MARIA BRANCH
Poblacion, Sta. Maria Bulacan
Tel No: (044) 896 2787

BOCAUE BRANCH
MacArthur Hiway, Lolomboy, Bocaue, Bulacan
Cel. No. 0906 074 5860

“For possible concerns or complaints, please call or contact
any of the above number”
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